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Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of LEAP India Private Limited
Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of LEAP India Private Limited (‘the
Holding Company’) and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as ‘the
Group'), as listed in Annexure |, which comprise the Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024, the
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated
Statement of Cash Flow and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year then ended, and
notes to the consolidated financial statements, including material accounting policy information and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act) in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
specified under section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015,
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India of the consolidated state of affairs of the Group as
at 31 March 2024, and their consolidated profit (including other comprehensive income), consolidated cash
flows and the consolidated changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the

Act. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India ('ICAI') together
with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consalidated financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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LEAP India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor's Report thereon

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Directors' Report but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this
other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The accompanying consolidated financial statements have been approved by the Holding Company’s Board
of Directors. The Holding Company’s Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5)
of the Act with respect to the preparation and presentation of these consolidated financial statements that give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated financial performance including other
comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of the Group in
accordance with the Ind AS specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The respective Board of
Directors of the companies included in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Group and for
preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting
policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the
Board of Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for assessing the ability of the Group to continue as a going concemn, disclosing,
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
Board of Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

Those respective Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the
companies included in the Group.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with Standards on Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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LEAP India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

9. As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing specified under section 143(10) of the Act we
exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Holding Company has adequate internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls;

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management;

Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of the Group to continue as a going concern. If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor's report
to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern;

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation; and

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial statements of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of financial statements of such
entities included in the financial statements, of which we are the independent auditors.

10. We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control
that we identify during our audit.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

11. Based on our audit, we report that the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act are not
applicable to the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India whose financial statements have
been audited under the Act since none of such companies is a public company as defined under section 2(71)
of the Act. Accordingly, reporting under section 197(16) is not applicable.

12. As required by clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 of Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (‘the Order’) issued
by the Central Government of India in terms of section 143(11) of the Act based on the consideration of the
Order reports issued by us, of companies included in the consolidated financial statements and covered under
the Act we report that there are no qualifications or adverse remarks reported in the respective Order reports

of such companies.
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LEAP India Private Limited
Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

As required by section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit, we report, to the extent applicable, that:

a)

b)

9)

h)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid
consolidated financial statements have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books,
except for the matters stated in paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

The consolidated financial statements dealt with by this report are in agreement with the relevant books
of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section
133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015;

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company and its
subsidiary and taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary
respectively, covered under the Act, none of the directors of the Group companies are disqualified as on
31 March 2024 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

The qualification relating to the maintenance of accounts and other matters connected therewith with
respect to the consolidated financial statements are as stated in paragraph 13(b) above on reporting under
section 143(3)(b) of the Act and paragraph 13(h)(vi) below on reporting under Rule 11(g) of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended);

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Holding Company and its subsidiary covered under the Act, and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, refer to our separate report in ‘Annexure |I' wherein we have expressed an unmodified opinion;
and

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor's Report in accordance with rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our
information and according to the explanations given to us:

i, The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigations on the consolidated
financial position of the Group as detailed in Note 38(b) to the consolidated financial statements;

i The Holding Company and its subsidiary did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at 31 March 2024;

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Holding Company and its subsidiary covered under the Act, during the year
ended 31 March 2024;

a. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India
whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us to the best
of their knowledge and belief as disclosed in Note 47(iv) to the accompanying consolidated
financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed
funds or securities premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Holding Company or
its subsidiary to or in any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the intermediaries’), with
the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the intermediary shall, whether,
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever
by or on behalf of the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary (‘the Ultimate Beneficiaries') or
provide any guarantee, security_or the like on behalf the Ultimate Beneficiaries;
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vi.

b. The respective managements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary incorporated in India

whose financial statements have been audited under the Act have represented to us to the best
of their knowledge and belief, as disclosed in the Note 47(v) to the accompanying consoclidated
financial statements, no funds have been received by the Holding Company or its subsidiary from
any persons or entities, including foreign entities (‘the Funding Parties’), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Holding Company, or any such subsidiary shall,
whether directly or indirectly, lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (‘Ultimate Beneficiaries') or provide any
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

Based on such audit procedures performed by us, as considered reasonable and appropriate in
the circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
management representations under sub-clauses (a) and (b) above contain any material
misstatement.

The Holding Company and its subsidiary have not declared or paid any dividend during the year ended
31 March 2024,

As stated in Note 51 to the consolidated financial statements and based on our examination which
included test checks, except for instances mentioned below, the Holding Company and its subsidiary,
which is a company incorporated in India and audited under the Act, in respect of financial year
commencing on 1 April 2023, have used accounting software for maintaining its their books of account
which have a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility and the same have been operated
throughout the year for all relevant transactions recorded in the software. Further, during the course
of our audit we did not come across any instance of audit trail feature being tampered with, other than
the consequential impact of the exceptions given below:

a.

b.

The audit trail feature was not enabled at the database level for accounting software to log any
direct data changes, used for maintenance of accounting records by the Holding Company and
its subsidiary.

The subsidiary has also used another accounting software for maintenance of accounting
records from 1 April 2023 to 10 October 2023 and it did not have a feature of recording audit trail
(edit log) facility. Subsequently, the subsidiary migrated to updated version of such accounting
software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility. However, such feature was
disabled for a short duration on 16 October 2023,

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
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Rakesh R_Agarwal
Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 24109632BKFBLM5168

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20 August 2024
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Annexure |

List of subsidiary included in consolidated financial statements

Sr. No.

Subsidiary company

1

Taron Material Handling Equipments Private Limited (Refer note 44.2)
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Annexure ||

Independent Auditor's Report on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements
under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’)

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of LEAP India Private Limited (‘the
Holding Company') and its subsidiary (the Holding Company and its subsidiary together referred to as ‘the
Group’), as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024, we have audited the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies
covered under the Act, as at that date.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for Internal Financial Controls

The respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company which are companies
covered under the Act, are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on
the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of
Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (‘the Guidance Note') issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India ('ICAl'). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of
adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of the Company’s business, including adherence to the Company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditor’'s Responsibility for the Audit of the Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial
Statements

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, as aforesaid, based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing issued by ICAI prescribed under Section
143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements, and the Guidance Note issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements were established and
maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements includes obtaining an understanding of such internal financial
controls, assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on
the auditor's judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
audit opinion on the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the Holding Company
and its subsidiary company as aforesaid.
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Independent Auditor’s Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal
financial controls with reference to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain
to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with
authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Financial Statements

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error
or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls
with reference to financial statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the
degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Holding Company and its subsidiary company, which are companies covered under the
Act, have in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements and such controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2024, based on the internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements criteria established by the Holding Company and its subsidiary
company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note issued by the
ICAI.

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
ants
Firm's Registra No.: 001076N/N500013

Rakesh
Partner
Membership No.: 109632

UDIN: 24109632BKFBLM5168

Place: Mumbai
Date: 20 August 2024
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LEAP India Private Limited
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2024
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

. As at As at
REle sl 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Properly, plant and equipment 3 (a) 97.502.51 80,580.37
Right of use assels a7 5,587.60 5,138.73
Capilal work-in-progress 3(b) 146.03 4.93
Goodwill 4 4,182.36 4,182.36
Other intangible assets 5 (a) 1.142.79 1,209.37
Intangible, assets under development 5(h) . - .6.83
Financial assels

Loans 6 - 5.36
Other financial assets i 1.000.87 241177
Income tax assels (net) 8 514.20 392.99
Other non-currenl assels 8 1.056.95 138.10
Total non-current assets 1,11,133.31 94,070.81
Current assets
Inventories 10 1,480.63 1,827.23
Financial assets
Investments 11 521401 203.35
Trade receivables 12 14,362.19 8,532.60
Cash and cash equivalents 13 B851.41 923.12
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents 14 488.65 234.20
Loans 15 17.19 21.47
Other financial assets 16 118.42 65.61
Other current assels 17 6,361.67 5,570.79
Total current assets 28,894.17 17,468.37
Total 1,40,027.48 1,11,639.18
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital 18 27276 207.98
Instruments entirely equity in nature 18 18,960.96 4,150.14
Other equily 19 52,184.08 52,582.53
Total equity 71,417.80 56,940.65
Liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 20 41,847 96 28,245.92
Lease liabilities 37 3,789.62 3,269.83
Provisions 21 129.09 96.28
Deferred tax liabilities (net) 8 1,636.38 583.63
Total non-current liabilities 47,303.05 32,195.66
Current liabilities
Financial liabilities
Borrowings 22 9,459.25 7,208.21
Lease liabilities 37 2,053.41 2,040.69
Trade payables 23
-Total outstanding dues of micro and small enlerprises 248.15 40.97
-Total outstanding dues of credilors other than micro and small enterprises 4,496.52 4,742.85
Other financial liabililies 24 3,966.07 7.836.28
Other current liabilities 25 970.50 410.76
Provisions 26 112,73 95.00
Current tax liabilities (net) 8 - 28.11
Total current liabilities 21,306.63 22,402.87
Total liabilities 68,609.68 54,598.53
Total equity and liabilities 1,40,027.48 1,11,5639.18
Summary of malerial accounting policies 2
The accompanying notes form an integral parl of the consolidaled financial statements.
This is the consolidated balance sheet referred to in our audit reporl of even dale
For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP For and on behalf of the Beard of Directors of
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LEAP India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

Particulars Note No Year ended Year ended
: A 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Income
Revenue from operations 27 36,497.08 25,336.68
Other income 28 697.28 479.84
Total income 37,194.36 25,816.52
Expenses
Purchase of stock-in-trade 29 963.59 535.66
Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade 30 41,19 (31.186)
Employee benefits expense 31 6,240.72 3,211.97
Finance costs 32 5,060.23 4,244.20
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses 33 11,260.88 7,402.80
Other expenses 34 8,957.14 9,470.83
Total expenses 32,5623.75 24,834.30
Profit before tax 4,670.61 982.22
Tax expense
(i) Current tax 8 1.85 30.99
(i) Deferred tax 8 951.44 50.10
Total tax expense 953.29 81.09
Net Profit for the year (A) 3,717.32 901.13
Other comprehensive income
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss, net of tax
Gain on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 35 519 9.72
Tax effect on above (1.30) (1.43)
Other comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (B) 3.89 8.29
Total comprehensive income for the year, net of tax (A+B) 3,721.21 909.42
Net profit attributable to :

Owner's of the parent 3,717.32 901.13

Non-contralling interest = .
Other comprehensive income/ (loss) attributable to:

Owner's of the parent 3.89 B.29

Non-controlling interest - -
Total comprehensive income attributable to:

Owner's of the parent 3,713.43 892.84

Non-controlling interest ) )
Earnings per equity share of face value of ¥ 1 each 36
Basic (in 3) 3.40 086
Diluted (in %) 3.36 0.83
Summary of material accounting policies 2

The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of the consolidated financial statements.

This is the consolidated statement of profit and loss referred to in our audit report of even date

For Walker Chandiok & Co LLP
Chartered Accguntants

Rakesh
Partner
Membership No.:109632

Place: Mumbai
Date : 20 August 2024

DIN: 06808369

Place: Mumbai
Dale : 20 August 2024

Dheeraj Sharma
Company Secretary
Membership No. A21999

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
LEAP India Private Limited




LEAP India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

Particulars Year ended Year ended
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
A, Cash flow from operating activities:
Profit before tax 467061 98222
Adjustments for:
Deprecialion, amartisation and Impairment expenses 11.260.88 7,402 80
Finance cost 506023 4,244 .20
Inlerest income (123.96) (127.73)
(Gain) / loss on fair valuation of current investments (183.80) 19.99
(Gain) / loss on sale of invesimen!. debenlure & bonds (16.97) 10.94
Provision for doubtful debts. ! = 180.72 . 507.80
(Gain) / loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) (189.09) 0.19
Share based payment expense 286.26 27141
Gain on termination of lease (148.62) (204.70)
Excess provision writlen back - (92.08)
Dividend income on current investment - (0.29)
Operating profit before working capital changes and other adjustments 20,796.26 13,014.77
Adjustment for changes in working capital:
Increase in trade receivables (6,010.31) (2.507.77)
(Increase) / decrease in financial and other assets (918.99) 312:93
Decrease / (increase) in invenlories 346.60 (987.24)
Increase In rade payables 168,88 3.053.67
Increase in financial and other liabilities 675.85 2271.62
Net cash generated from operations 15,058.29 15,157.98
Direcl taxes (paid) / refund (net) (151.17) 140,74
Net cash generated from operating activities (A) 14,907.12 15,298.72
B. Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase of properly, plant and equipment (inciuding capital wark in progress, inlangible
assels undarpderi'elo);arﬁem. capitacl‘ agvancets capl(a?cre?:lilors. mtan;b!g assels am? fpataany) (11,14076)
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 2,368.40 1.138.69
Fixed deposils placed 1,216.90 (727.91)
Purchase of current investments (net) (4,719.89) -
Purchase consideration paid towards business combinalion (including transaclion costs) (208.03) (9.523.43)
Interes! received 102.00 111.28
Nel cash used in investing activities (B) (33,870.39) (20,142.15)
C. Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from Issue of equity shares on exercise of ESOP 8.71 -
Proceeds from issue of preference shares 15.000.00 4,710.87
Paymenl towards cancellation of vested oplion (137.19) -
Buyback of equily shares (5,698.81) .
Proceeds from long-term borrowings 33,877.48 14,985.04
Repayment of long-term borrowings (18,538.21) (7,604.71)
Proceeds / (repayment) of short-term borrowings (net) 2,088.85 (3,224.17)
Share issue expenses (424.45) (118.35)
Principal repayment of lease liabilities (2,370.99) (1,718.93)
Dividend income on current investment - 0.29
Finance charges (4,893.83) (3,606.95)
Net cash generated from financing activities (C) 18,891.56 3,423.09
Net (decrease)lincrease in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) {71.711) (1,420.34)
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 923.12 2,343 46
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year (Refer note 13) 851.41 923.12
Component of cash and cash equivalents (Refer note 13):
Balance with banks :
- Currenl accounts 861.41 923.12
Total
Notes:

1) The statement of cash flows has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statemenl of cash flows.

2) Significant non-cash movement during the year includes conversion of compulsorily convertible debentures and optionally convertible redeemable preference shares
amounting to & 4,816 55 lakhs (31 March 2023; 2 90.21 lakhs) and % 2,375.98 lakhs (31 March 2023: Nil) respectively

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated financial stalements

This is the Consalidated slatemenl of cash flow statement referred lo in our audit report of even date

q LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
LEAP India Private Limited

i

SunuMathew
- Chairferson and Managing Directar
= pin: ssoease

For Walker Chandiok &
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrajon No. 0g

ENMNG00013

Rakesh R. Agarwa
Partner
Membershipfo. 109632

Dheeraj Sharma
Company Secretary
Membership No A21999

Place Mumbal
Date © 20 August 2024 Date 20 August 2024

Place: Mumbai



LEAP India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

A. Equity share capital (Refer note 18)

Particulars Number Amount
As at 01 April 2022 2,00,24,000 200.24
Movement during the year [Refer notes 18(f) and (g)] 7,73,880 7.74
As at 31 March 2023 2,07,97,880 207.98
Movemenl during the year [Refer noles 18(f), (k), (m), (n) and (0)] 64,78,196 64.78
As at 31 March 2024 2,72,76,076 27276
B. Instruments entirely equity in nature (Refer note 18)
0.0001% Series A Parlicipating Cumulative Compulsory Converlible Preference shares ("CCPS") of 2 1,000 each
Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 61,056 610.56
Movement during the year [Refer nole 18 (g)] (3,308) (33.06)
As at 31 March 2023 57,750 577.50
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 57,750 577.50
0.0001% Series A1 CCPS of ¥ 1,000 each
Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 32,047 320.47
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 32,047 320.47
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 32,047 320.47
0.0001% Series B CCPS of 1,000 each
Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 94,659 946.59
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 94,659 946.59
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 94,659 946.59
0.0001% Series C CCPS of ¥ 1,000 each
Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 17,869 178.69
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 17,869 178.69
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 17,869 178.69
0.0001% Series C1 CCPS of ¥ 1,000 each
Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 24,790 247.90
Meovement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 24,790 247.90
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 24,790 247.90
0.0001% Series C2 CCPS of ¥ 1,000 each
Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 55,842 558.42
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 55,842 558.42
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 55,842 558.42
0.0001% Series D CCPS of ¥ 1,000 each
Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 15,090 150.90
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 15,090 150.90
Movemenl during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 15,090 150.90
0.0001% Series E CCPS of 1,000 each
Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 4,695 46,95
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 4,695 46.95
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 4,695 46.95




LEAP India Private Limited
Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

0.0001% Series F CCPS of 2 1,000 each

Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 88,803 888.03
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 88,803 888.03
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 88,803 888.03
0.0001% Series F1 CCPS of 2 1,000 each

Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 3,395 33.95
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 3,395 33.95
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2024 3,395 33.95
0.0001% Series G CCPS of % 1 each

Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 - -
Movement during the year [Refer note 18(i)] 11,56,498 11.56
As at 31 March 2023 11,56,498 11.56
Movement during the year - =
As at 31 March 2024 11,656,498 11.56
0.001% Series H CCPS of 100 each

Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 -
Movement during the year -
As at 31 March 2023 - -
Movement during the year [Refer note 18(j)] 1,50,00,000 15,000.00
As at 31 March 2024 1,50,00,000 15,000.00
0.0001% Series A Optionally Convertible Redeemable Preference Shares ("OCRPS") of 1,000 each

Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 4,174 13.44
Movement during the year [Refer note 18 (0)] - 28.30
As at 31 March 2023 4,174 41.74
Movement during the year [Refer note 18 (0)] (4,174) (41.74)
As at 31 March 2024 - -
0.0001% Series B OCRPS of 1,000 each

Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 5,258 16.93
Movement during the year [Refer note 18 (0)] - 35.65
As at 31 March 2023 5,258 52.58
Movement during the year [Refer note 18 (0)] (5,258) (52.58)
As at 31 March 2024 - -
0.0001% Series C OCRPS of 2 1,000 each

Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 5,311 17.10
Movement during the year [Refer note 18 (0)] - 36.01
As at 31 March 2023 5,311 53.11
Movement during the year [Refer note 18 (0)] (5,311) (53.11)
As at 31 March 2024 - -
0.0001% Series E Compulsory convertible debentures ('CCD') of 2 1,000 each

Particulars Number Amount
As at 1 April 2022 4,175 41.75
Movement during the year - -
As at 31 March 2023 4,175 41,75
Movement during the year [Refer note 18 (m)] (4,175) (41.75)
As at 31 March 2024 - -
Total 31 March 2023 15,70,356 4,150.14
Total 31 March 2024 1,66,61,438 18,960.96




LEAP India Private Limited

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in  lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

C. Other equity (Refer note 19)

Reserve and Surplus
Equity component Retained
Particulars of tfompt?und Securities earnings Share hased Capita_l Total
financial : ({Including other | payment redemption
instruments RIRITIIR comprehensive reserve reserve
income)
Opening balance as at 1 April 2022 2,148.85 46,716.53 (1,118.01) - 46,747.37
Profit for the year = - 901.13 = 901.13
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - 8.29 = 8.29
Impact on account of conversion of CCD [Refer note 18 (f)) (53.72) 99.15 (10.07) - - 35.36
Conversion of Series A, B and C OCRPS from partly paid up to fully - - -
paid up [Refer note 18 (o)] 2,223.94 2,223.54
Premium on issue of Series G CCPS [Refer note 18 (j)] - 2.486.93 - - 2,486.93
Impact on account of conversion of Series A CCPS [Refer note (g)) - 26.45 - - - 26.45
Share / debenture issue expenses » (118.35) 2 = x (118.35)
Impacl of share based payments [Refer nole 19.1] s - - 271.41 271.41
Closing balance as at 31 March 2023 2,095.13 50,434.65 (218.66) 271.41 - 52,582.53
Profit for the year - = 3,717.32 - = 3,717.32
Other comprehensive income for the year (net of tax) - - 3.89 - 3.89
Impact on account of conversion of CCD [Refer note 18 (f)) (2,095.13) 3,897.62 (94.42) - - 1,708.07
Buyback of equity shares [Refer note 18 - (5,698.81) - - 28.53 (5,670.28)
Impact on account of cenversion of Series A, B and C OCRPS 117.94 - - - 117.94
[Refer note 18 (o]
Impact of share based payments [Refer note 19.1] - - 286.26 - 286.26
Impacl on cancellation of vested options [Refer note 19.1] - (89.71) (47.49) (137.20)
Transfer from share based payment reserve on exercise of stock - 445 86 - (445.86) -
oplion
Share issue expenses - (424.45) - - - (424.45)
Closing balance as at 31 March 2024 . 48,772.81 3,318.42 64.32 28.53 52,184.08

The accompanying noles form an integral part of the consolidated financial statemenis

This is the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity referred 1o in our audit report of even date

Rakesh R. Ag
Pariner
Membership No.: 109632

Place: Mumbai
Date : 20 August 2024

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors of
LEAP India Private Limited

SunulMathew
Man

DIN: 6808369

Place: Mumbai

ing Director

Date : 20 Augusl 2024

Company Secretary
Membership No. A21999




LEAP India Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

24

2.2

23

2.4

Corporate information

LEAP India Private Limited, ("the Holding Company" or "the Company" or "LIPL") (CIN:U74900MH2013PTC245166) incorporated in India on 3 July 2013 as a privale
limited company, is primarily engaged in the business of pooling of resources for providing customised and best in class services to automotive sector and Fast-
Moving Consumer Goods (FMCG) industry in the supply chain arena. The Holding Company provides pooled services lo various customers, which increases the
efficiency of the supply chain with reusable packaging solutions,

The registered office of the Holding Company is located at Office 302, 3rd Floor, Ruby Crescent Business Boulevard, Ashok Nagar, Kandivali East Mumbai -
400101.

The consolidated financial statements (the "financial statements") comprises the financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiary. The consolidated
financial statements of the Group were authorised for issue in accardance with resolution of Board of Directors on 20 August 2024,

Material accounting policies:

Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared to comply in all material respects with the Indian Accounting Standards ("Ind AS") as
prescribed under Seclion 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Acl’) read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as amended from time to time
notified under the Companies (Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015. The Group has uniformly applied the accounting policies for all the periods presented in these
financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on going cencern basis in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in India. Further, the
consolidated financial statements have been prepared on historical cost convention except for certain financial assets and financial liabilities which are measured at
fair values and employee benefit plans which are measured using actuarial valuation as explained in relevant accounting policy, on accrual basis of accounting.

The consolidated statement of cash flow has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS 7) statement of cash flows.

Principles of consolidation

The subsidiary is the entity over which the Group exercises control. The Group controls an entity where the Group is exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns
from its invelvement with the entity and has the abilily to affect those returns through its power to direct the relevant aclivities of the entity. Subsidiary is fully
consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the Group. It is deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

The Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared on the following basis:

a) The financial statements of the Holding Company and the subsidiary have been consolidated on a line-by-line basis by adding together the book value of like
items of assels, liabilities, income and expenses, after eliminating intra-group balances and intra-group transactions resulting in unrealized profits or unrealized cash
losses.

b)The financial statements of the subsidiary used for the purpose of consolidation is drawn up to the same reporting date as of the Group,

c) The consolidated financial statements have been prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events in similar circumstances and
are presented, 1o the extent possible, in the same manner as the Holding Company's separate financial statements.

Business combination

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition method. The acquisition method involves the recognition of the acquiree’s identifiable assets and
liabilities, including contingent liabilities, regardless of whether they were recorded in the consolidated financial statements prior to acquisition. As on the acquisition-
date, the identifiable assets and liabilities assumed are included in the consoclidated statement of financial position at their acquisition date fair values.

The excess of consideralion transferred over the fair value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the consideration transferred is less than
the fair value of the net assets acquired, the difference is recognised in capital reserve.

Operating cycle for current and non-current classification

All the assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current, wherever applicable, as per the operating cycle of the Group as per the guidance set out
in Schedule lIl to the Companies Act, 2013.

An asset is treated as current when it is:

+ Expected to be realised or consumed in normal operating cycle

+ Held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporling period, or

« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liabilily is current when:

« |l is expected lo be seltled in normal operaling cycle

« It is held primarily for the purpose of trading

+ Il is due to be sellled within twelve months after the reporting period, or

+ There Is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period

Operating cycle for the business activities of the Group is based on the nature of products and the time between the acquisition of assels for sale and their
realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Group has ascertained its operating cycle as upto twelve months for the purpose of current and non-current
classification of assets and liabilities.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
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Accounting estimates

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformily with the recognition and measurement principles of Ind AS requires the management to make
judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assels and liabilities and the accompanying disclosure and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period. Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised and future periods are affected. Although these estimales are based on the
management's best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in the outcomes requiring a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assels or liabilities in future periods.

Key accounting estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment lo the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Group based ils assumptions and estimates on
parameters available when the financial statements were prepared. Existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due
to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the consolidated financial statements in the
period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

a. Revenue recognition
Refer note 2,14

h. Useful life of property, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets represent a significant proportion of the asset base of the Group. The charge in respect of periodic
depreciation is derived after determining an estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of ils life. The useful lives and
residual values of Group's assets are determined by the management at the time the asset is acquire and reviewed periodically, including at each reporling date.

c. Deferred tax assets

In assessing the realisability of deferred income tax assels, management considers whether some portion or all of the deferred income tax assets will not be
realized. The ultimate realization of deferred income tax assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which the
temporary differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversals of deferred income lax liabilities, projected fulure taxable income and
tax planning strategies in making this assessment. Based on the level of historical taxable income and projections for future taxable income over the periods in
which the deferred income tax assets are deductible, management believes that the Group will realize the benefits of those deductible differences. The amount of
the deferred income tax assets considered realizable, however, could be reduced in the near term if estimates of future faxable income during the carry forward
period are reduced.

d. Defined benefit obligations and compensated absences
The cost and present value of the gratuily obligation and compensated absences are determined using actuarial valuations. An actuarial valuation involves
making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future. These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases,
altrition rate and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to
changes in these assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

e. Leases
The Group evaluates if an arrangement qualifies to be a lease as per the requirements of Ind AS 116. Identification of a lease required significant judgement, The
Group uses significant judgement in assessing the lease term (including anticipated renewals) and the applicable discount rate. The Group revises the lease
term if there is a change in non-cancellable period of a lease.

f. Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and capital commitments
Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as result of a past event and it is probable that the outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount can be reliably estimated. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

Contingent liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from past events, whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group

Contingent assels are not recognised in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable

Capital commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on
capital account and not provided for,
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g. Impairment of non financial assets:
Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or class of assets exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of
disposal and its value in use. There is significant estimation uncertainty in determining recoverable value. Recoverable value is taken as higher of value in use
and fair value |less cosls to sell,

-

Impairment of financial assets:

The impairment provisions for financial assels are based on assumptions about risk of default and expected cash loss. The Group uses judgement in making
these assumptions and'selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on Group's ‘past history, existing market conditions as well as farward looking
estimales at the end of each reporting period.

i. Employees stock option plan:
The Group recognizes expense relating to share based payment in net profit using fair value in accordance with Ind AS 102-Share Based Payment. The grant
dale fair value of options granted to employees is recognized as an employee expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the period that the
employees become unconditionally entitled to the options. Equily settled share based compensation benefits are provided to employees under the employee
stock option schemes/plans. The fair value of options granted under such schemes/plans is recognised as an employee benefits expense with a corresponding
increase in equity as "Share options outstanding account". The total amount to be recognised is determined by reference to the fair value of the oplions granted:
- including any market performance conditions (e.qg., the entity's share price)
- excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance vesting conditions (e.g. profitability, sales growth targets and an employee of the entity
continuing over a specified time period) and
- including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (e.g. the requirement for employees to hold shares for a specific period of time),
The total expenses are amortised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At the end of
each period, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that are expected to vest based on the service and non-market performance vesting
conditions. If recognises the impact of the revision lo original estimates, if any, in the consolidated statement of profit and loss, with a corresponding adjustment
to equity. In case vested options are forfeited / expires unexercised, the related balance standing to the credit of the “Share options outstanding account” is
transferred to "Retained earnings".

j. Business combination and intangible assets
Business combinations are accounted for using Ind AS 103, Business Combinations. Ind AS 103 requires the identifiable intangible assets and contingent
consideration to be fair valued in order to ascertain the net fair value of identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities of the acquiree. Significant
estimates are required to be made in determining the value of contingent censideration and intangible assets. These valuations are conducted by valuation
experls

k. Goodwill impairment
The Group estimates the value in use of the cash generating unit (CGU) based on the future cash flows after considering current economic conditions and
trends, estimated future operating results and anticipated future economic and regulatory conditions. Goodwill is tested for impairment, relying on a number of
faclors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows. Calculating the future net cash flows expected to be generated to determine if
impairment exists and to calculate impairment involves significant assumptions, estimation and judgement. The estimated cash flows are prepared using internal
forecasts.

Fair value measurement
The Group measures financial instruments, at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement
date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction 1o sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

- In the principal market for the assel or liability, or

- In the absence of a principal market, In the most advantageous markel for the asset or liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market
participants act in their economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant's ability lo generate economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and
best use or by selling it fo another markel participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data is available o measure fair value, maximising the use of
relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs. All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial
statements are categorized within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level inpul that is significant to the fair value measurement as a
whole:

Level 1 - Quoled prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived
from prices).

Level 3 - Inputs for the assels or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have occurred between levels
in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each
reporting period.

At each reporting date, the Management analyses the movements in the values of assels and liabilities which are required to be remeasured or re-assessed as per
the Group's accounling policies. For this analysis, the Management verifies the major inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the
valuation computation lo conlracts and other relevant documents.

The Managemenl also compares the change in the fair value of each asset and liability with relevant exlernal sources to determine whether the change is

reasonable.
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Plant, property and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are staled at cost of acquisition including attributable interest and finance costs, if any, till the date of acquisition/ installation of the
assets less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Cost of acquisition comprises the purchase price and any directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for its intended use. Any trade discounts and rebates are deducted in arriving at the purchase price.

Subsequent expenditure relating to Property, plant and equipment is capitalised only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other expenses on existing plant, property and equipment including day-lo-day repair and
maintenance expendilure and cost of replacing parts, are charéed fo the statement of profit and loss for the period during which such expenses are incurred.
Expenses relating to major repairs which resull in increase of life of the assel are capitalised.

An item of property, plant and equipment and any significant part initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected from its use or disposal. The cost and related accumulaled depreciation are eliminaled from the financial statements, either on disposal or when relired
from aclive use, Gains or losses arising from derecognition of property, plant and equipment are measured as the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is derecognised.

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development represents expenditure incurred in respecl of capital projecls/intangible assets under
development which are not yel ready for their intended use and are carried at cost less accumulated impairment loss, if any. Depreciation/amortisation s not
provided on capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development until construction/installation are complete and the asset is ready for its intended use

Intangible assets
Identifiable intangible assets are recognised when it is probable that future economic benefits attributed to the asset will flow te the Group and the cost of the asset
can be reliably measured. :

Intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. The cost of an intangible asset comprises of its purchase price,
including any import duties and other taxes (other than those subsequently recoverable from the taxing authorities), and any directly attributable expenditure on
making the asset ready for its intended use. Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only if it is probable that the future economic benefits associated with the
expenditure will flow to the Group.

The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite life is recognised in the stalement of profit and loss under the head 'Depreciation and amortization
expense’. An intangible asset is derecognised upon disposal (i.e., at the date the recipient obtains control) or when no future economic benefits are expected from its
use or disposal.

Goodwill Impairment

Goodwill on acquisitions of subsidiaries is not amortised but it is tested for impairment annually, or more frequentily if events or changes in circumstances indicate
that it might be impaired and is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of
goodwill relating to the entity sold.

Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for the purpose of impairment testing, The allocation is made to those cash-generating units or groups of cash-
generating units that are expected to benefit from the business combination in which the goodwill arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the lowest level
at which goodwill is monitored for internal management purposes.

Goodwill is tested for impairment, relying on a number of factors including operating results, business plans and future cash flows. Calculating the future net cash
flows expecled to be generated to determine if impairment exists and fo calculate impairment involves significant assumptions, estimation and judgement. The
estimated cash flows are prepared using internal forecasts.

Depreciation and amortization
Depreciation is provided for property, plant and equipment so as to expense the cost less residual value over their estimated useful lives on a straight line method.
Intangible assets are amorlised from the date they are available for use, over their estimated useful lives. The estimated useful lives are as mentioned below:

Class of asset Useful life estimated by
Management (years)

Computer and IT equipment

Furniture 5
Wooden pallets 15
Other than wooden pallets 3to7
Other pooling assets 3to 15
Plant and other equipment Jto 10
Forklift 8to 10
Computer softwares 3105
Customer relationship 15
Trademarks 3
Batleries 10
Motor vehicles 10
Buildings 60
Leasehold improvement 3
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Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013 prescribes useful lives for properly, plant and equipment and allows companies to use higher/ lower useful lives and residual
values if such useful lives and residual values can be technically supported and justification for difference is disclosed in the financial slatements. The management
believes that the depreciation rates currently used fairly reflect its estimate of the useful lives and residual values of property, plant and equipment

Depreciation/ amortisation on property plant and equipment has been provided on the straight-line method as per the useful life assessed based on lechnical advice,
taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated use of the asset on the basis of management’s best estimation of getling economic benefits from those
class of assets,

The Group uses ils external technical expertise along with historical and industry trends for arriving at the economic life of an asset. The estimated useful life and
residual values are reviewed at each financial year end and the effect of any change in the estimates of useful life/residual value is accounted on prospective basis.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately 1o its recoverable amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.
Depreciation on additions is provided on a pro-rata basis, from the date on which asset is ready to use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are accounted in the statement of profit and loss under other
income or olher expenses.

Financial instruments
A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of another entity.

Financial assets

Inifial recognition and measurement

In the case of financial assets, not recorded at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (FVPL), financial assets other than trade receivable, are recognised initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss. Purchases or sales of financial assels that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place (regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in following categories:

i. Financial assets measured at amortised cost
A financial asset is subsequently measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assels for collecling contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method. Amortised cost is
calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
interest income in the statement of profit and loss.

ii. Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. Equity instruments which are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Group decides to classify the same either as at FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an instrument-by-instrument basis.
The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment, However, the Group may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of profit and loss. The Group has
classified its investments in mutual funds as Investments at FVTPL.

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the assel expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another party. If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership and continues to control the transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may have to
pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On de-recognition of a financial asset in its entirety, the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in the stalement of profit and loss.
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Impairment of financial assets

The Group applies expecled credit loss model for recagnising impairment loss on financial assets measured at amortised cost

The Group follows 'simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of simplified approach does not require
the Group to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial
recognition,

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion
of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a provision matrix lo determine impairment loss allowance-on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is
based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates, At every reporting date,
the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recegnized during the period is recognized as expenses in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is reflected
under the head ‘other expenses’ in the P&L.

Equity instruments and financial liabilities
Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by the Group are classified according o the substance of the contractual arrangements entered into and the
definilions of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity insfrument is any contract thal evidences a residual interest in the assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments which are
issued for cash are recorded at the proceeds received, nel of direct issue costs, Equily instruments which are issued for consideration other than cash are recorded
at fair value of the equity instrument.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
All financial liabililies are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of financial liabililies at amortized cost, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Subsequent measurement
All financial liabilities except derivatives are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The
effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments (including all fees and points paid or received that form an integral part of the
effective interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to
the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounis is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.

Compound financial instruments

Convertible instruments are separated into liability and equity components based on the terms of the contract. On issuance of the said instruments, the liability
component is arrived by discounting the gross sum (including redemption premium, if any) at a market rate for an equivalent non-convertible instrument. This
amount is classified as a financial liability measured at amortised cost until it is extinguished on conversion or redemption. The remainder of the proceeds is
recognised as equity component of compound financial instrument. This is recognised and included in shareholders' equity, net of income tax effects, and not
subsequently re-measured.

Offsetting financial Instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to setlle on a net basis or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

214  Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognised when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the Group expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services.
The Group has generally concluded that it is the principal in its revenue arrangements. The revenue is recognized net of Goods and Service Tax (if any).

Sale of goods
Revenue from the sale of the Group's core products pallets and forklifts are recognised when delivery has taken place and control of the goods has been transferred

to the customer, and when there are no longer any unfulfilled obligations. The customer obtains control of the goods when the significant risks and rewards of
products sold are lransferred to the customer, and the Group has the present right to payment all of which occurs at the point the goods are delivered to and
accepled by the customer, according to the specific delivery terms that have been agreed with the customer.

Rendering of services
Income from services rendered is recognised based on agreements/arrangements with lhe cuslomers as the service is performed and there are no unfulfilled

obligations. Revenue from property, plant and equipment given on lease to customers are recognised on per day rent, basis the terms of the agreement. Revenue
from sale of goods is recognized when control of the goods or services are transferred to the customer, usually on delivery of the goods.
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Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when it is probable that the economic benefils will flow to the Group and the amount of income can be measured
reliably. Interest income is accrued on a lime basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effeclive interest rate applicable, which is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the financial assel {o that asset's net carrying amount on inilial recognition,

Other income is recognised as and when due or received, whichever is earlier,

Dividend income

- Dividend income is recognised at the time when the right to receive is established by the reporting date: When the right to receive the payment is established, it is

probable that the economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the entity and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Unbilled revenue
Unbilled revenue represents amounts recognised based on services performed in advance of billing in accordance with contract terms,

Foreign currency transactions and balances

(i) Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the reporting currency, by applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the reporting currency
and the foreign currency at the date of the transaction.

(ii) Conversion

Foreign currency monetary items are translated using the exchange rale prevailing at the reporting date. Non-monetary items which are measured in terms of
historical cost denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rate at the date of the transaction; and non-monetary items which are carried at
fair value denominated in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates that existed when the values were determined.

(iii) Exchange differences
Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss except to the extent it treated as an adjustment to
borrowing costs.

Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits such as salaries, wages, performance incentives etc. are recognised as expenses at the undiscounted amounts in the statement of
profit and loss of the period in which the related service is rendered. Expenses on non-accumulating compensated absences is recognised in the period in which the
absences occur.

Defined contribution plan

Contributions to defined contribution schemes such as provident fund and employees' state insurance (ESIC) are charged as an expense based on the amount of
contribution required to be made as and when services are rendered by the employees' provident fund contribution is made to a government administered fund and
charged as an expense to the stalement of profit and loss. The above benefits are classified as Defined Contribution Schemes as the Group has no further
obligations beyond the monthly contributions.

Defined benefit plan

The Group's net obligation in respect of defined benefit plans is calculated separately for each plan by estimating the amount of future benefit that employees have
earned in the current and prior periods, discounting that amount and deducting the fair value of any plan assets.

The calculation of defined benefit obligations is performed annually by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method. When the calculation results in a
potential asset for the Group, the recognized asset is limited to the present value of economic benefits available in the form of any future refunds from the plan or
reductions in future contributions to the plan. To calculate the present value of economic benefits, consideration is given to any applicable minimum funding
requirements.

Remeasurement of the net defined benefit liability, which comprise actuarial gains and losses and the effect of the assel ceiling (if any, excluding interest), are
recognized immediately in other comprehensive income (OCI). Net interest expense (income) on the net defined liability (assets) is computed by applying the
discount rate, used to measure the net defined liability (asset). Net interest expense and other expenses related to defined benefit plans are recognized in the
slatement of profit and loss.

When the benefits of a plan are changed or when a plan is curlailed, the resulting change in benefit that relates to past service or the gain or loss on curtailment is
recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss. The Group recognizes gains and losses on the settiement of a defined benefil plan when the settlement
oceurs.

Compensated absences are provided for based on actuarial valuation. The actuarial valuation is done as per projected unit credit method. The Group presents the
leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not have an unconditional right to defer its setllement for 12 months after the reporting date.

Leave entitlement and compensated balances

Accumulated leave which is expected to be utilised within next twelve months, is treated as shori-term employee benefil. The leave enlitlement obligation that is
considered long term in nature, is measured based on an actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method, on similar lines as gratuity. Short term leave
benefit is measured on an undiscounted basis on the same lines as other Short term employee benefits. The leave entillement obligation is an unfunded benefit at
present.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs relating to acquisilion, construction or production of a qualifying asset which takes substantial period of time lo get ready for its intended use are
added lo the cost of such asset lo the extent they relate to the period till such assets are ready to be put to use. Other borrowing costs are charged to the statement
of profit and loss in the period in which il is accrued. Any ancillary cost incurred in connection with the arrangement of borrowings are amortised over the period of
such borrowings,
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2.20

Inventories
Inventory of traded goods, consumables and stores and spares are valued at lower of cost or net realisable value. Cost includes cost of purchase and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location and condition. Cost is determined on a weighted average basis.

Nel realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated cosis necessary to make the
sale.

Leases

The Group's lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for buildings (warehouse and office premises) and equipmeni. The Group assesses at contract inception
whether a contract is, or contains, a lease. That is, if the contract conveys the right to control the use of an identified assel for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

Group as a lessee:

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets. The Group
recognises lease liabilities o make lease payments and right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

The Group accounts for each separate lease component of a contract and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component by allocating all of
conlracl consideration to the lease component.

i) Right-of-use assets

At the commencement date, the right of use assets is measured at cost. The cost includes an amount equal to the lease liabilities plus adjusted for the amount of
prepaid or accrued lease payments. After the commencement dale, the right of use assets is measured in accordance with the accounting policy for property, plant
and equipment i.e. right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurement of
lease liabilities. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease term.

ii} Lease liabilities

Al the commencement date of the lease, the Group recognises lease liabilities measured at the present value of lease payments to be made over the lease term.
The lease payments include fixed payments (including in substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, variable lease payments that depend on
an index or a rale, and amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees.

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement date because the interest rate implicit
in the lease is not readily determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and reduced for
the lease payments made.

iii) Lease term

At the commencement date, the Group determines the lease term which represents non-cancellable period of initial lease for which the asset is expected to be used,
together with the periods covered by an option to extend or terminate the lease, if the Group is reasonably certain at the commencement date to exercise the
extension or termination option.

In event of termination of lease, the remaining lease liability and the unamortised value of the right of use asset are charged to the statement of profit and loss.

iv) Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to its short-term leases (i.e., those leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less from the
commencement date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the lease of low-value assets recognition exemption to leases that are considered to be
low value. Lease payments on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term or another
systematic basis which is more representative of the pattern of use of underlying asset.

Group as a lessor:

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Assels subject to
operating leases are included in fixed assels. Lease income on an operating lease is recognized in the statement of profit and loss on rendering of the service
related to the hire of pallets and foldable large containers as per the agreement with customers. Costs, including depreciation, are recognized as an expense in the
statement of profit and loss. Initial direct costs such as legal costs, brokerage costs, etc. are recognized immediately in the statement of profit and loss.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share are calculated by dividing the net profit or loss (excluding OCI) for the period attributable to equity shareholders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding during the period. The weighted average number of equily shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for events such as
bonus issue, bonus element in a right issue, share split and reserve share splits (consolidation of shares) that have changed the number of equity shares
outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Diluted earnings per share is computed by dividing the profit (loss) for the year as adjusted for dividend, interest and other changes to expense and income (net of
any attributable taxes) relating to the dilutive potential equity shares, by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per
share and the weighted average number of equity shares which could have been issued on the conversion of dilutive potential equily shares. Potential equity shares
are deemed to be dilutive only if their conversion to equily shares would decrease the net profit per share from continuing erdinary operations. Potential dilutive
equity shares are deemed to be converted as at the beginning of the period, unless they have been issued al a later date.
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2.21

2,22

2,23

2.24

2,25

Taxes

Current tax

Current tax is recognised based on the estimated tax liability computed after taking credit for allowances and exemptions in accordance with the Income Tax Act,
1961. Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior years are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from, or paid to, the taxation authorities.
The tax rates and tax laws used to compule the amount are those that are enacted, or substantively enacled, al the reporting date in the countries where the Group
operates and generates taxable income. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entily has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to
settle on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. . .

Income tax expense comprises of current tax expense and the net change in the deferred tax asset or liability during the pericd. Current and deferred taxes are
recognised in the statement of profit and loss, excepl when they relale to items that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which
case, the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity. Management periodically evaluates positions taken in
the tax returns with respecl to siluations in which applicable lax regulations are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts.
Deferred tax is delermined by applying the Balance Sheet approach. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognised for all deductible temporary differences
between the financial statements’ carrying amount of existing assets and liabilities and their respective fax base. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured
using the enacted tax rates or tax rates that are substantively enacted at the Balance Sheet date. The effect on deferred tax assels and liabilities of a change in tax
rates is recognised in the period thal includes the enactment date.

Deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against which the temporary differences can be
utilised. Such assets are reviewed at each Balance Sheet date to reassess realisation

Deferred tax assets include Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) paid in accordance with the tax laws in India, to the extent it would be available for set off against future
current income tax liability. Accordingly, MAT is recognised as deferred tax assel in the balance sheet when the asset can be measured reliably and it is probable
that the future economic benefit associated with the asset will be realised.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities. Current tax assets and tax liabilities
are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offsel and inlends either to setlle on a net basis, or to realise the assel and setlle the liability
simultaneously.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amount of assets is reviewed al each balance sheet date if there is any indication of impairment based on internal/external factors. An impairment loss
is recognized wherever the carrying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the greater of the assets, net selling price and
value in use. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and risks specific to the asset.

In determining net selling price, recent market transactions are taken into account, if available. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation
model is used. After impairment, depreciation is provided on the revised carrying amount of the asset over its remaining useful life.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when the Group has a presenl obligation (legal or construclive) as a resull of past events and il is probable that an outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits will be required to seltle the obligation, in respect of which a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. Provisions
(excluding gratuity and compensated absences) are determined based on management's estimate required to settle the obligation at the Balance Sheet date. In
case the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost. These are reviewed at each Balance Sheet dale and adjusted to
reflect the current management estimates.

Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and capital commitments
Contingent Liabilities are disclosed in respect of possible obligations that arise from pasl events; whose existence would be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the Group.

The Holding Company exercises judgement in determining if a particular matter is possible, probable or remote. The Holding Company exercises judgement in
measuring and recognizing provisions and the exposures to contingent liabilities related to pending litigation or other oulstanding claims subject lo negoliated
setlement, mediation, government regulation, as well as other contingent liabilities. Judgement is necessary in assessing the likelihood that a pending claim will
succeed, or a liability will arise, and to quantify the possible range of the financial setlement.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements. However, it is disclosed only when an inflow of economic benefits is probable,

Capital Commitments are future liabilities for contractual expenditure, classified and disclosed as eslimaled amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital
account and not pravided for.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise the nel amount of short-term, highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash (short-term
deposils with an original malurily of three months or less) and are subject lo an insignificant risk of change in value, cheques on hand and halances with banks.
They are held for the purposes of meeling short-term cash commitments (rather than for investment or other purpases).

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short- term deposits, as defined above.
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2.26  Segment reporting
Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operating decision
maker regularly monitors and reviews the operaling results of the whole Group as one segment of "Pooling of resources”. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 "Operating
Segments”, the Group's entire husiness falls under this one operational segment and hence the necessary information has already been disclosed in the Balance
Sheet and the statement of profit and loss.

2.27  Share issue expenses - .
Share issue expenses are charged off against available balance in the Securities premium reserve.

2.28 Exceptional Items
When an item of income or expense within profit or loss from ordinary activity Is of such size, nature or incidence, that their disclosure is relevant to explain the
performance of the Group for the year, the nature and amount of such items is disclosed as exceptional items.

2.29 Recent accounting pronouncements - Standards issued but not made effective
Ministry of Corporate Affairs ("MCA") nolifies new standards or amendments to the existing standards under Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules as
issued from time to time. During the year ended 31 March 2024, MCA has not nolified any new standards or amendments to the existing standards applicable to the
Group.,

2.30 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with amended Schedule |ll to the Companies Acl 2013,

2.31  New and amended standards
The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has notified Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 lo amend the following Ind
AS which are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 April 2023. The Group applied for the first-time these amendments.

(i) Definition of Accounting Estimates - Amendments to Ind AS 8
The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates, changes in accounling policies and the correction of errors. It has also been
clarified how entities use measurement techniques and inpuls to develop accounting estimates.

(i) Disclosure of Accounting Policies - Amendments to Ind AS 1

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting policy disclosures that are more useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their 'significant’
accounting policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making
decisions about accounting policy disclosures.
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LEAP India Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended
31 March 2024

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

As at As at

9}n) ‘Capital work In. progeess 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Opening balance 4.93 -
Add: Additions during the year 146.03 4.93
Less: Capitalisations during the year. : 3 (4.93) : -
Closing balance 146,03 4,93

Ageing of Capital work in progress

Amount in CWIP for a period of

Particulars Total
Less than 1year 1-2years 2-3years More than 3 years

Balance as at 1 April 2022 - - < = 5

Project in progress 4.93 - - - 4.93
Projects temporarily suspended - - - . =
Balance as at 31 March 2023 4.93 - - - 4.93
Projectin progress 146.03 - - - 146.03
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - 5
Balance as at 31 March 2024 146.03 - - - 146.03

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, there were no projects, the completion of which was overdue or exceeded cost compared to original plan.

This page has been left blank intentionally




LEAP India Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial
statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in  lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

4 Goodwill

Partic.:ulars Asat As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Carrying value at the beginning of the year 4,182.36 -
On acquisition of SKAN Marine Services Private Limited (Refer note 49) - 4,182.36
Carrying value at the end of the year 4,182.36 4,182.36
Goodwill has been allocated in the following CGU:
Renting of Forklift business 4,182.36 4,182.36

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is allocated to the Cash
Generating Units (CGU), which benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. The chief operating decision maker
reviews the goodwill for any impairment at the CGU's level.

The recoverable amount of a CGU is the higher of its fair value less cost to sell and its value-in-use, both of which
are calculated by the Group using a discounted cash flow analysis. These calculations use pre tax cash flow
projections over a period of five years, based on financial budgets approved by the management. For calculation of
the recoverable amount, the Group has used the following rates.

Particulars As A8 al
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Renting of forklift business
- Growth rate 8.40% 8.40%
- Discount rate 18.80% 18.80%

The above discount rate is based on the weighted average cost of capital of the subsidiary of the Group. These
estimates are likely to differ from future actual results of operations and cash flows.

An analysis of sensitivity of th'e computation to a change in key parameters (operating margins and discount rate)
based on reasonably probable assumptions, did not identify any probable scenario in which recoverable amount of
the CGU would decrease below its carrying amount.

As at 31 March 2024 and 31 March 2023, the estimated recoverable amount of the CGU exceeded its carrying
amount, hence impairment is not triggered.
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LEAP India Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in Z lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

5(a) Otherintangible assets

Computer Trademarks Customer

Periailars software (Registered) relationship Total
Gross block
Balance as at 1 April 2022 133.48 - - 133.48
Additions - : Z 47.15 3 - - L 47.15
Dispasals - - - -
Additions from acquisition of Skan Marine Services Private Limited (Refer note 49) - 1.43 1,137.00 1,138.43
Balance as at 31 March 2023 180.63 1.43 1,137.00 1,319.06
Additions 47.36 1.19 - 48.55
Disposals s s . s
Balance as at 31 March 2024 227.99 2.62 1,137.00 1,367.61
Accumulated amortisation
Balance as at 1 April 2022 66.27 - - 66.27
Amortisation charge 35.09 0.07 7.89 43.05
Reversal on disposals - - - -
Additions from acquisition of Skan Marine Services Private Limited (Refer note 49) 0.37 - - 0.37
Balance as at 31 March 2023 101.73 0.07 7.89 109.69
Amortisation charge 38.97 0.36 75.80 115.13
Reversal on disposals - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 140.70 0.43 83.69 224.82
Net block
Balance as at 31 March 2023 78.90 1.36 1,129.11 1,209.37
Balance as at 31 March 2024 87.29 219 1,053.31 1,142.79
Note (i) : Refer note 20 for information on intangible assets pledged as security against borrowings of the Group.
As at Asat
5 (b) Intangible assets under development 24 March 2024 31 March
2023
Softwares - 6.83
6.83
5 (b) (i) Movement of intangible assets under development
Particulars Software Total
Balance as at 1 April 2022 - -
Additions 6.83 6.83
Capitalised - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 6.83 6.83
Additions < -
Capitalised 6.83 6.83
Balance as at 31 March 2024 - -
Amount in intangible assets under development for a period of Total
Particulars Less than 1 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3
year years
Balance as at 1 April 2022 . - - - -
Project in progress 6.83 - - - 6.83
Projects temporarily suspended - - - - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 6.83 - - - 6.83

Project in progress o 5 = =
Projects temporarily suspended = « - F =
Balance as at 31 March 2024 . - - R .
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LEAP India Privale Limited
Summary of material accounting palicies and other expl y informalion lo the consolid:

| financial

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, excepl for share data, and if otherwise stated)

Wis as al and for the year ended 31 March 2024

Particulars

As at
31 March 2024

As al
31 March 2023

6 Loans (non-current)
(Unsecured, considered good, unless olherwise stated)
Loans
- employees
Total

Break-up of securily details

Loans considered good - secured

Loans considered gaod - unsecurad

Laans vhich have significant increase in credif risk
Loans - credil impaired - unsecured

Total

7 Other non-current financial assets
Deposils with banks having maturity period of mare than twelve months®
Secuiily deposits
Total

# held as llen amounting to ¥ 663.08 lakhs (31 March 2023 : % 2,124.07 lakhs) agains! credil facililies

8 Income lax assels
Advance incame tax (net)
Total

i. The following lable provides the delails of income lax assets and liabilities:
a) Income 1ax assels
b} Income tax liabilities
Net income tax assets
Disclosed as:
Income fax assels
Current tax liabilities

ii. The gross movement in the income tax assels (net):

Net income tax assets at the beginning

Net income 1ax assets/(liability) acquired Irom acquisition of Skan Marine Services Private Limited

Provision for income tax during the year
Income tax paid

Refund received

Met income lax assels al the end

iii. A reconciliation of the income tax provision to the amount computed by applying the statutory income tax rate to the profit/ {loss) before income laxes is as below:

- 5.36
- 5.36
- 5386
- 5.36
671.10 214245
320.77 269.32
1,000.87 241177
514.20 396.28
514.20 396.28
516.05 549.59
(1.85) (184.71)
514.20 364.88
514.20 39299
- 2811
364.88 564 42
- (27.81)
(1.85) (30.99)
701.44 520.70
(550.27) (661.44)
514.20 364.88
Year ended Year ended

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Current tax 1.85 30.89
Deferred tax a51.44 50.10
Total lax expense 953.29 81.09
Prolit before income lax 4,670.61 0982.22
Applicable income 1ax rale 2517% 2517%
Computed expected tax expense/ (credil) 1,178.02 247.21
Effect of expenses allowed for tax purpose (53.05) (32.13)
Efiect of expenses not allowed for tax purpose 13.12 38.59
Losses on which deferred tax was now created (182.58) (171.05)
Items subject to tax at special rate (2.22) (1.53)
Income tax expense charged Lo the statement of profil and loss 953.29 81.09
iv. Movement in deferred tax assets/ (liabilities)
(Charged)/ (Charged)/
Particulars As al aAc:::Ii:;i"nS:l creditedto  credited to other As at
31 March 2022 profit and comprehensive 31 March 2023
SKAN)
loss income

Unabsorbad depreciation and brought forward losses 361347 - B84.84 - 4,498.31
Provision for employee benelits 81.76 2741 (0.30) (1.43) 107.44
Provision for expected credit loss 779 10.35 1479 - 202.33
Temporary differences batween right of use assels and lease liabilities 4173 - 1.52 - 43.25
Temporary differences between book and tax balance of property, plant and equipment (3.814.15) (549.00) (1,051.25) - (5.414.40)
Fair value ol invasimant - (20.86) 0.30 = (20.56)
Total . {532.10) {50.10] (1.43) (583.63)




LEAP India Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as al and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in  lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

10

"

1.

11.2

12

121

12.2

(Charged) / (Charged) [

As at credited to  credited to other As at
Partculars 31 March 2023 profit and comprehensive 31 March 2024
loss income

Unabsorbed depreciation and brought forward losses 4,498.31 (121.55) - 4,376.76
Provision for employee benefils 107 .44 (12.51) (1.30) 93.63
Provision for expected credil loss 20233 62.64 = 264 .97
Financial llabilities measured al amortised cosl - (48.67) - (4B 6&7)
Temporary differences between right of use assels and lease liabililies 4325 4B.15 - 91.40
Temporary differences between book and tax balance of properly, plant and equipment (5.414.40) (853.76) - (6,268.16)
Fair value of investment : ' {20.56) (2575) - (46.31)
Customer relationship (286.18) 2108 = (265.10)
Total (683.63) (961.45) (1.30) (1,536.38)
Other non-current assets

Unsecured, considered good

Capllal advances 995,95 66.77
Prepaid expenses 10.05 2882
Balance with government authorities 50,85 4251
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Capilal advances - 8.07
Less: impairment allowance - (9.07)
Total 1,056.95 138.10
Inventories

Stock-in-trade (trading goods) - At cast or net realisable value, whichever is lower

Pallets 0.33 263
Forklift - 38.89
Consumables

Lumbers 1,139.89 1,375.17
Slores and spares 340.41 41054
Total 1,480.63 1,827.23
Investments (current)

Investments in mutual funds measured al fair value through profit and loss 5,180.02 114.22
Invesimenis in debenlure and bonds measured al fair value through profit and loss 33.99 179.13

5,214.01 293.35

Other disclosures for current investments:
- Aggregale amount of quoled investments - 179.13
- Aggregale markel value of quoted invesimenis - =

- Aggregate amount of unquoled investments

- Aggregale amount of impairment in value of investments

Refer nole 42 for price risk

5,180.02

114.22

During the year, he Group has pledged its investments in mutual funds in favour of the lenders as a part of Ihe financing agreement for facilities amounting to 2 5,180.02 lakhs (31

March 2023: Nil)

Trade receivables

Trade receivables considered doubtiul 15,415.01 0,448.71
Less : Allowance for expected credil loss (1.052.82) (816.11)
Total 14,362.19 8,532.60
Break-up of security details
Trade receivables considerad good - secured e &
Trade receivables considered good - unsecured 14,362.19 B,532 60
Trade receivables which have significant increase in credil risk - -
Trade receivables - credit impaired 1.052.82 916.11
Total 15,415.01 9,448.71
Less : Allowance for expected credil loss (1,052.82) (916.11)
Total 14,362.19 8,532.60
Ageing of Trade Receivables
Outstanding from the due date of payment

As at 31 March 2024 Less than 6 More thain Total

Unbilled Not due months 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years
Undisputed  trade  receivables - 1.049.89 5606.18 6,721.56 98546 - - 14,362.19
considered goad
Undisputed trade receivables — credil - - - 238:31 1112 56.32 16.29 323.04
impaired
Disputed lrade receivables — considered - - - - - & - -
good
Disputed trade receivables - credil - 258 73.40 13.46 8540 38247 172.47 729.78
impaired
Total 1,049.99 5,607.76 6,794.96 1,238.23 96.52 438.79 188.76 15,415.01
Less: Provisian for doublful receivables 1,052 82
Total 14,362.19




LEAP India Private Limited

Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, excepl for share data, and if otherwise stated)

123
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14

16

15.1

16

17

Qutstanding frem the due date of payment

As at 31 March 2023 Less than 6 More than Total
Unbilled Not due Wikovithi 6 months - 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years 3 years
Undisputed rade recelvables - 503.91 481361 3.031.58 183 .50 - - 8,532.60
considered good
Undispuled lrade receivables - credit 3 - 1.78 39.78 71.45 13.47 9.31 136.79
impaired
Disputed trade receivables — considered - - - - -
good
Dispuled lrade receivables - credit = i - 3620 - 89.96 406.30 22581 2205 780.32
impaired
Total 603.91 4,813.61 3,069.56 313.24 477.75 239.28 31.36 9,448.71
Less: Provision for doubtful receivables 916.11
Total 8,532.60
Movement in unbilled receivable
Particulars As at As at
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
Balance as al beginning of the year 503.91 356.28
Less: Billed during the year (352.31) (356.28)
Add: Revenue recognised during the year 898 39 503.91
Balance as at end of the year 1,049.99 503.91
As at As at

Cash and cash equivalents
Balances with banks

- in current accounts

Cash in hand

Taotal

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits wilh aniginal maturity of more than three months bul less than twelve months®

Total

A held as lien amounting to ¥ 453.59 |akhs (31 March 2023 : ¥ 208.00 lakhs) against credit facllities

Loans (current)
(Unsecured, considered good, unless otherwise stated)
Loans
- employees
Total

Break-up of security details

Loans considered good - secured

Loans considered good - unsecured

Loans which have significanl increase in credil risk
Loans - credit impaired - unsecured

Total

Other current financial assets
Securily deposils

Insurance claims receivable
Total

Other current assets

Unsecured, considered good
Advances o suppliers

Prepaid expenses

Advances lo employees

Balance with government authorilies
Total

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

B51.41 §23.00
- 0.12
851.41 923.12
488.65 234.20
488,65 234,20
17.19 21.47
17.18 21.47
17.19 2147
17.19 21.47
84,00 13.27
3442 52.34
118.42 65.61
137.07 6520
81.33 64.65
24.88 =
6,118.39 5,440.94
6,361.67 5,670.79




LEAP India Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

18  Equity share capital

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
(a) Authorised share capital
Equity shares of 1 each 13,14, 49,000 1.314.49 13.14.49.000 1,314.49
0.0001% Preference Shares of T 1,000 each 423,061 4,230.61 423,061 423061
0.0001% Preference Shares of T 1 each [Refer note 18 (h)) 11,57,171 11.57 11.57,171 11.57
0.001% Preference Shares of ¥ 100 each [Refer note 18 (j)] 1,50,00,000 15,000.00 - =
Total 14,80,29,232 20,556.67 13,30,29,232 5,566.67
(b} Issued, subseribed and fully paid up

Equity share capital
Equity Shares of 2 1 each 2,72,76,076 27276 2,07 97 880 207.98

2,72,76,076 272.76 2,07,97,880 207.98
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Preference share capital
0.0001% Series A CCPS of ¥ 1,000 each 57,750 577.50 57.750 577.50
0.0001% Series A1 CCPS of 2 1,000 each 32,047 32047 32,047 32047
0.0001% Series B CCPS of 1,000 each 94,659 946.69 94 659 946.69
0.0001% Series C CCPS of 2 1,000 each 17,869 178.69 17,869 178.69
0.0001% Series C1 CCPS of ¥ 1,000 each 24,790 247.90 24,790 247.90
0.0001% Series C2 CCPS of T 1,000 each 55,842 558.42 55,842 558.42
0.0001% Series D CCPS of 2 1,000 each 15,090 150.90 15,090 150.90
0.0001% Series E CCPS of ¥ 1,000 each 4,695 46.95 4,695 46.95
0,0001% Series F CCPS of ¥ 1,000 each 88,803 B88.03 88,803 888.03
0.0001% Series F1 CCPS of 2 1,000 each 3,395 33.95 3,395 33.95
0.0001% Series G CCPS of ¥ 1 each 11,586,498 11.56 11,56,498 11.56
0.001% Series H CCPS of ¥ 100 each 1,50,00,000 15,000.00 - -
0.0001% Series A OCRPS of ¥ 1,000 each = - 4174 41,74
0.0001% Series B OCRPS of 2 1,000 each - - 5258 52.58
0.0001% Series C OCRPS of ¥ 1,000 each - - 5311 5311
Series ECCD
0.0001% CCD of T 1,000 each 5 =2 4175 41.75

1,65,51,438 18,960.96 16,70,356 4,150.14

i}  Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amaount

Equity shares
Balance as al the beginning of the year 2,07 97,880 207.98 2.00,24,000 200.24
Add: Conversion of Series A CCPS. [Refer note 18 ()] - - 661,200 6.61
Add: Equity shares issued on exercise of ESOP, [Refer note 18 (k)] 8,70,815 871 = -
Add: Conversion of Series A.B and C OCRPS. [Refer note 18 (0)] 29,48,600 29 49 - -
Add: Conversion of 13% Compulsorily Converlible Debentures. [Refer note 18 (f)] 43,94,520 43.94 1.12,680 1.13
Add: Conversion of 0.0001% Compulsorily Converiible Debenlures inta equily shares 11,16,800 147 - E
[Refer note 18 (m))
Less: Buyback of equily shares. [Refer nole 18 (n)) (28,52,539) (28.53) - -
Balance at the end of the year 2,72,76,076 272,76 2,07,97,880 207.98

ii) Reconciliation of preference shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the year

0.0001% Series A CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year 57,750 577.50 61,056 610.56
Add: Issued during the year - = = _

Less. Conversion lo equily shares [Refer note 18 ()] - - (3.308) (33.08)
Balance at the end of the year 57,750 577.50 57,750 577.60
0.0001% Series A1 CCPS

Balance at the beginning of the year 32,047 32047 32,047 32047
Add: Issued during the year - - = =
Balance at the end of the year 32,047 320.47 32,047 320.47
0.0001% Series B CCPS

Balance at the beginning of the year 94,659 946.59 94,659 946.59
Add: |ssued during the year . S 7 5,
Balance at the end of the year 94,659 946.59 94,659 946.59
0.0001% Series C CCPS

Batance al the beginning of the year 17.869 178.69 17,869 17869
Add: Issued during the year - - - -
Balance at the end of the year 17,869 178.69 17,869 178.69
0.0001% Series C1 CCPS

Balance at lhe beginning of the year 24,790 247.90 24790 247 .90
Add lssued during the year = > - -
Balance at the end of the year 24,790 247.90 24,790 247.90

0.0001% Series C2 CCPS
Balance al the beginning of the year 55,842 55842 55842 558 42
Add: Issued durng the year -

Balance at the end of the year i 55,842 558.42 55,842 550.42




LEAP India Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatery information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if othenwise stated)

(c)

(d)

0.0001% Series D CCPS

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Balance at the end of the year

0.0001% Series E CCPS

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year
Balance at the end of the year

0.0001% Series F CCPS

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: |ssued during lhe year
Balance at the end of the year

0.0001% Series F1 CCPS

Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: |ssued during the year
Balance at the end of the year

0.0001% Series G CCPS

Balance alt the beginning of the year

Add’ Issued during the year [Refer note 18 (i)]
Balance at the end of the year

0.001% Series H CCPS
Balance at the beginning of the year
Add: Issued during the year [Refer note 18 (j)]

Balance at the end of the year

0.0001% Series A OCRPS

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Call made during the year

Less : Conversion to equity shares [Refer note 18 (o))
Balance at the end of the year

0.0001% Series B OCRPS

Balance at lhe beginring of the year

Add: Call made during the year

Less : Conversion to equity shares [Refer note 18 (o))
Balance at the end of the year

0.0001% Series C OCRPS

Balance at the beginning of the year

Add: Call made during lhe year

Less : Conversian to equity shares [Refer nole 18 (o]
Balance at the end of the year

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the equity shares in the Group

Equity shares of ¥ 1 each
Mr. Sunu Mathew
Vertical Holdings |l PTE Limited [Refer note 18 (j)]

Shareholders holding more than 5% of the preference shares in the Group

Series A CCPS

Mayfield India Il, Lid

Schroder Adveq Asia Mauritius VIl Limited
Vertical Holdings Il PTE Limited [Refer note 18 (j}]

Series A1 CCPS

Mayfield India II, Ltd.

Mr. Rishabh Mariwala

Verlical Holdings 1l PTE Limited [Refer nole 18 ()]

Series B CCPS

Maylield India II, Ltd.

IIFL India Private Equity Fund

IIFL Seed Venlures Fund - Series 2

Sargam Retails Private Limited

Vertical Holdings Il PTE Limiled [Refer nole 18 (j))

Series C CCPS

Mayfield India |I, Lid

Sixth Sense India Opportunities |

IndiaNivesh Venture Capital Fund

TC| Venlures Limited

Vertical Holdings Il PTE Limited [Refer note 18 (j)]

15,090 150.90 16,090 150 90
16,080 150.90 16,090 160.90
4,695 46.95 4,695 46.95
4,695 46.95 4,695 46,95
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number Amount Number Amount
88,803 £88.03 88,803 888.03
88,803 §88.03 88,803 888.03
3,395 33.95 3,395 33.95
3,395 33.95 3,395 33.95
11.56,498 11.56 - -
& S 11,568,498 11.56
11,56,498 11.56 11,56,498 11.56
1,50,00,000 15,000.00 - -
1,50,00,000 15,000.00 - -
4,174 41.74 4174 13.44
- 28.30
4,174 41.74 - -
- - 4174 41.74
5,258 52.58 5,258 16.93
- 3565
5,258 52.58 - -
5 = 5,258 62.58
5,311 53.11 5,311 17.10
- 36.01
5,311 53.11 - -
- - 6,311 53.11
As at 31 March 2024 As at 31 March 2023
Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
2,07.57,261 76.10% 2,06,61,200 99.34%
65,15,551 23.90% - 0.00%
- - 5,040 B.73%
- - 52,710 aM.27%
57,750 100.00% - 0.00%
- 24,463 76.33%
. . 7,339 22.90%
32.047 100.00% = =
- 19,835 20.95%
_ - 33,456 35.34%
= = 20,901 22.08%
- - 10,732 11.34%
94 659 100.00% - -
- 5,584 31 25%
- - 5.584 3125%
- - 5,584 3125%
. A 1117 6.25%
17 869 100.00% - -




LEAP India Private Limited
Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

{Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

(e)

(i)

(iiy

1

lii.
2

Series C1 CCPS

Sixth Sense India Opportunities || - - 12284 49.55%
Mr. Sanjay Raghunath - - 6,204 25.03%
Mr. Rishabh Mariwala - - 2,792 11.26%
Vertical Holdings |1 PTE Limited [Refer note 18 (j)] 24 654 99.05% - -
Series C2 CCPS R
TVS Shriram Growth Fund 3 - - 55,842 100.00%
Vertical Holdings || PTE Limited [Refer note 18 (j)] 55,842 100:00% - -
Series D CCPS

Sargam Retails Private Limited - - 9,554 63.31%
North Haven India Infrastructure Fund - - 5,536 36.69%
Vertical Haldings | PTE Limited [Refer note 18 (j)] 15,080 100.00% - -

As at 31 March 2024

As at 31 March 2023

Number of shares % of holding Number of shares % of holding
Series E CCPS
Sixth Sense India Opportunities 11 = - 1,565 33.33%
Mayfield India Ltd, || - = 1,565 33.33%
TVS Shriram Growth Fund (Il - - 1,565 33.34%
Vertical Holdings || PTE Limiled [Refer note 18 (j)] 4,695 100.00% - -
Series F CCPS
Morth Haven India Infrastructure Fund - - 88,803 100.00%
Vertical Holdings || PTE Limited [Refer note 18 (j)] 88,803 100.00% - -
Series F1 CCPS
TVS Shriram Growth Fund (Il - - 3,395 100.00%
Vertical Holdings Il PTE Limiled [Refer nate 18 (j)) 3,395 100.00% 2 L
Series G CCPS
Mr. Suresh Kumar Sood 11.56,498 100.00% 11,586,498 100.00%
Series H CCPS
Vertical Holdings || PTE Limited [Refer note 18 (j)] 1,49,90,962 100.00% - -
Series A OCRPS
Mr. Sunu Mathew [Refer note 18 (o)] - - 4,174 100.00%
Series B OCRPS
Mr. Sunu Mathew [Refer note 18 (o)] - - 5,258 100.00%
Series C OCRPS
Mr. Sunu Mathew [Refer note 18 (o)) - - 5311 100.00%

Notes :

As per records of the Holding Company, including its register of shareholders/ members and other declaralions received from shareholders regarding beneficial interesl, lhe above shareholding represents
both legal and beneficial ownerships of shares. -

Rights, preference and restrictions attached to each class of shares

Equity shares

The Holding Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of 2 1 per share (31 March 2023 : 2 1 per share). Each holder of equily shares is entilled to one vole per share. In the evenl of
liquidation of the Group, the holders of equity shares will be entilled to receive remaining assets of the Group, after distribution of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in proportion to the number
of equily shares held by the shareholders.

CCPS

In the event of liquidation of the Group, the preference shareholders are entilled to the same economic rights as the equily shares of the Holding Company, however, in priority to the economic rights
attached to the equity shares of the Holding Company. Each shareholder will be enlilled lo a dividend of 0.0001% (0.001% In series H) in preference of equily shares, with cumulalive dividend for all the
Series. Dividend will be paid as and when il is declared and paid on equity shares.

Conversion terms

A Series :

Each preference share of Series A CCPS will automalically convert into equily shares upon occurrence of earlier of lhe following events :

19 years and 11 manths from first / second / third / fourth completion dates.

Immedialely prior lo the closing of the Qualified IPO

At the option of the holder of the Series A Preference Share al any time and from lime lo time.

Each Series A CCPS will be convertible, without the payment of any additional consideration by the holder thereof at the option of the holder thereof at any time and from time to time, into the number of
fully paid Equity Shares determined by dividing the initial purchase price by the conversion price in effect al thal lime of conversion.

A1 Series :

Any holder of the Series A1 CCPS will have right to convert the Series A1 CCPS into equity shares at the earlier of :

Immedialely grior 1o listing of the Shares of Ihe Holding Company on a stock exchange

Al lhe expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the date of issue of Series A1 CCPS

Al any time at the option of the holder of the Series A1 CCPS.

Each series A1 CCPS shall convert into such number of equity shares whose valuation shall be derived at discount of 2% per manth, on a per day pro rala basis, if the qualified funding of B Series gal
completed within 12 months from dale of first tranche, provided the conversion price does nol exceed the price per share of lhe Holding Company calculated basis a pre money valuation of the Group of 2
12,500 lakhs on a fully diluted basis.

In the event the Halding Company does not complete a Qualified Series B funding within 12 months from first tranche closing date, then the Series A1 conversion price shall be calculaled basis pre money
valuation of the Group of ¥ 10,000 lakhs on a fully diluted basis

If required by applicable |aw al the time of conversion, the series A1 conversion price shall nol be lower than fair markel value of the Group on the dale of issuance of Series A1
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B Series :
1) Each holder of the Series B CCPS shall compulsorily convert the Series B CCPS held by it in whole or part into equily shares upon occurrence of the following events.

i, Within the |atest lime permilted under applicable law or prior to underiaking the listing of equily shares of the Holding Company pursuant lo a qualified IPO, whichever is earlier.

ii.  Atthe expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the dale of issue of Series B CCPS.

i,  Alany lime at the oplion of the holder of Series B CCPS

2)  Each Series B CCPS shall convert into such number of equity shares which shall be initially in the ratio of 1:200 which shall be adjusted for anti dilution, if any or to provide for any additional equity shares
that each holder of Series B CCPS may require In erder to fully derive the benefil as required for liquidily preference mutually agreed between all investors.

C Series :

1) Each holder of the Series C CCPS shall compuisarily convert the Series C CCPS held by il in whole ar part into equity shares upon occurrence of the follewing events:

i Within the latest lime permilted under applicable law or prior to undertaking the listing of equity shares of the Holding Company pursuant to a qualified IPO, whichever is earlier.

il. Al lhe expiry of 19 years and 11 manths from [he dale of issue of Series C CCPS.

ji.  Alany lime at the oplion of the hatder of Series C CCPS. .

2) Each Series C CCPS shall converl inlo such number of equily shares which shall be initiafly in the ratio of 1:201.18 except for 1 shareholder wherein the conversion ratio is 1:200, which shall be adjusted
for anti dilution, if any or lo provide for any addilional equily shares that each holder of Series C CCPS may require in order to fully derive the benefit as required for liquidity preference mulually agreed
belween all investors.

C1 Series :

1) Each holder of the Series C1 CCPS shall compulsorily convert the Series C1 CCPS held by it in whole or part into equily shares upon occurrence of the following events:

i Within the latest lime permitted under applicable law or prior to undertaking the listing of equity shares of the Holding Company pursuant to a qualified IPO, whichever is earlier.

il Althe expiry of 19 years and 11 months from lhe dale of issue of Series C1 CCPS

fi. Al any lime at the oplion of each Dynamic Series C1 Investor (it being clarified that if the conversion is at the option of a Dynamic Series C1 Investor, it may choose lo convert its Series C1 CCPS eilher in
whole or in parl)

2 Each Series C1 CCPS shall convert into such number of equily shares which shall be initially in the ratio of 1:200 excepl for three shareholders wherein the canversion ratia is 1:222.21, or to provide for any
addilional equity shares thal each slalic Series C1 CCPS Inveslor may require in order to fully derive the benefit of voting rights assigned to such shares.

C2 Series ¢
1) Each holder of the Series C1 CCPS shall compulsorily converl the Series C1 CCPS held by it in whale or part into equily shares upon occurrence of the following events:

i Within the latest time permitted under applicable law or prior to undertaking the listing of equity shares of the Holding Company pursuant to a qualified IPO, whichever is earlier.

ii.  Allhe expiry of 19 years and 11 months from (he date of issue of Series C2 CCPS.

ii. Al any time at the option of each Dynamic Series C2 Investor (it being clarified that If the conversion is al the oplion of a Dynamic Series C2 Investor, it may choose to conver its Series C2 CCPS either in
whole or in part).

2)  Each Series €2 CCPS shall converl into such number of equily shares which shall be inilially in the ratio of 1:200 or lo pravide for any additional equity shares that each static Series C2 CCPS Investor may
require in order to fully derive the benefit of voting rights assigned to such shares.

D Series :

1) Each holder of the Series D CCPS shall compulsorily convert the Series D CCPS held by it in whole or part inlo equily shares upon occurrence of the following events:

i Within the latest time permitted under applicable law or prior to-undertaking the listing of equity shares of the Halding Company pursuant to a Qualified IPO, whichever is earlier.

ii.  Althe expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the date of issue of Series D CCPS.

ii.  Alany lime al the aption of each Dynamic Series D Inveslor (it being clarified that if the conversion is al the oplion of a Dynamic Series D Investor, il may choose lo convert its Series D CCPS either in
whole or in part).

2} Each Series D CCPS shall converl into such number of equity shares which shall be initially in the ratio of 1:201.77 or to provide for any additional equity shares that each static Series D CCPS Inveslor
may require in order to fully derive the benefil of voling rights assigned lo such shares.

E Series :

1)  Each holder of the Series E CCPS shall compulsorily convert the Series E CCPS held by it in whole or part into equity shares upon occurrence of the following events:

i Within the latest time permilled under applicable law or pricr to undertaking the listing of equity shares of the Holding Company pursuant to a Qualified IPO, whichever is earlier.

ii. At the expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the date of issue of Series E CCPS.

iil. Al any time al the option of each Dynamic Series E Investor (it being clarified that if the conversion is at the oplion of a Dynamic Series E Investor, it may choose lo convert its Series E CCPS either in
whole or in part).

2) Each Series E CCPS shall convert into such number of equily shares which shall be initially in the ratio of 1:267.48 or to provide for any additional equity shares that each static Series E CCPS Investor
may require in order to fully derive the benefit of voling rights assigned to such shares.

F Series :
1) Each holder of Ihe Series F CCPS shall compulsorily convert the Series F CCPS held by it in whole or par into equity shares upon occurrence of the following events:

i, Within the latest time permilled under applicable law or prior to undertaking the listing of equity shares of the Holding Company pursuant lo a Qualffied IPO, whichever is earlier,

ii. Al the expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the date of issue of Series F CCPS.

ii.  Atany lime al the option of Ihe holders of Series F CCPS (it being clarified thal if ihe conversion is al the option of a holder of Series F CCPS, Il may choose to convert its Senas F CCPS eitherin whole or
in part).

2\ Each Series F CCPS shall converi inlo such number of equity shares which shall be initially in the ratio of 1:200 or lo provide for any addiional equily shares thal each slalic Series F CCPS Investor may
require in order to fully derive the benefil of voting rights assigned lo such shares.

Pursuant lo Shareholders agreemen! entered wilh reference to Issuance of Series F CCPS dated 31 December 2020, the agreement shall supersede and entirely replace lhe Earlier Share Holders
Agreemant (SHA) (as supplemented by the SHA First Addendum, SHA Second Addendum) and shall be the sole agreement recording the righls and obligalions agreed lo belween the Parties and othir
Sharaholders in respect of the management and contral of the affairs of the Holding Company, Iransfer restriction on securilies and cerlain rights and obligations, interse, with effecl from the Completion
Date, in accordance with the lerms and condilions set oul herein

F1 Series :

1) Each holder of the Series F1 CCPS shall compulsarily convert the Series F1 CCPS held by it in whole or part into equily shares upon occurrence of the following events:

|, Within the latest ime permilled under applicable law or prior to undertaking the listing of equity shares of the Holding Company pursuanl lo a Qualified IPO, whichever is earlier

ii.  Althe expiry of 19 years and 11 months from Lhe date of issue of Series F1 CCPS

ii Atany time al the option of the holders of Series F1 CCPS (it being clarified that if the conversion is at the option of a holder of Series F1 CCPS, it may choose to convert its Series F1 CCPS either in whole
ar in par)

2)  Each Series F1 CCPS shall converl into such number of equity shares which shall be Initially in the ratio of 1:200 or to pravide for any additional equily shares thal each stalic Serigs F1 CCPS Investor may
require in order to fully derive the benefit of voling rights assigned to such shares.

G Series :
1) Holder of the Series G CCPS shall campulsorily convert the Series G GCPS held by it in whole or parl into equily shares Lpon occurrence af the following evenls,
i Wilhin the latest lime permitted under applicable law or prior lo undertaking the listing of equily shares of the Holding Company pursuant lo a Qualified IPO, whichever is earlier.
il Atthe expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the date of issue of Series G CCPS.
i, Atany time al the option of the holders of Series F1 CCPS (it being clarified that if the conversion is al the option of a holder of Series £1 CCPS, il may choose lo convert its Serles G CCPS either in whole
or in parl)
2)  Each Series G CCPS shall convert into such number of equily shares which shall be initially in the ralio of 1:1.
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{h)
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(i

(k)
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(m)

(n)

(o)

(p)

H Series :
Holder of the Series H CCPS shall compulsorily convert Ihe Series H CCPS held by it in whole or part inte equily shares upon occurrence of the following events

As may be mulually agreed in writing between the Holding Cempany, Investor 1 and Investor 2 but not later than the maximum lime limit permilled under applicable laws i e. 14 Seplember 2043; or

Prior to the Conversian Date, al \he option of the holder of the Series H CCPS (in each case, such date the “Conversion Date”), into equily shares each with veting and scanomic rights at par with all other
Equity Shares as on the Conversion Date.

Each Series H CCFS shall convert into such number of equily shares which shall be initially in the ratio of 1:0.5005409 or any lesser number of equity shares that may be required as per the conversion
ratio in terms of issue of Series H CCPS.

Series A OCRPS :

Each holder of Ihe Series A OCRPS shall compulsorily convert the Series A OCRPS held by it in whole or part inlo equily shares upon occurrence of the following events:

Within the latest time permitted under applicable law or prior to undertaking the listing of equity shares of the Holding Company pursuant to a Qualified IPO. whichever is earlier.

Al the expiry of 19 years and 11 menths fron the date of issue of Series A OCRPS ’ )

At any lime at the aption of the holders of Series A OCRPS (it being clarified that if the conversion is at the option of a holder of Series A OCRPS, it may choose to convert ils Series A OCRPS either in
whole or in part)

Each Series A OCRPS shall convert into such number of equily shares which shall be initially In the ratio of 1:200 or to pravide for any addilional equity shares thal each slalic Series A QCRPS Investor
may require in order Lo fully derive the benefil of voling nghts assigned to such shares,

Series B OCRPS :

Each holder of the Series B OCRPS shall compulsorily convert the Series B OCRPS held by il in whole or part into equily shares upon occurrence of the following events:

Within the latest time permitted under applicable law or prior to underiaking the listing of equity shares of the Holding Campany pursuant to a Qualified IPO, whichever is earlier

Al the expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the date of issue of Series B OCRPS

At any time at the option of the holders of Series B OCRPS (it being clarified that if the canversion is al the option of a holder of Series B OCRPS, it may choase te convert ils Series B OCRPS either in
whale or in part)

Each Series B OCRPS shall canvert into. such number of equity shares which shall be initially in the ratio of 1:200 or to provide for any addilional equily shares thal each slalic Series A QCRPS Investor
may require in order ta fully derive the benefit of voling rights assigned ta such shares.

Series C OCRPS ;

Each holder of the Series C OCRPS shall compulsorily convert the Series C OCRPS held by it in whaole or part into equity shares upan occurrence of the following events :

Wilhin the latest time permilted under applicable law or prior to underiaking the listing of equily shares of the Holding Company pursuanl to a Qualified IPO, whichever is earlier

Al the expiry of 19 years and 11 months from the date of issue of Series C OCRPS.

Al any time al the oplion of the holders of Series C OCRPS (it being clarified that if the conversion is at the option of a holder of Series C QCRPS, it may choose lo converl its Series C OCRPS either in
whole or in part).

Each Series C OCRPS shall convert inlo such number of equity shares which shall be initially in the ratio of 1:200 or lo provide for any additional equity shares that each stalic Series & CCRPS Investor
may require in order to fully derive the benefit of voling rights assigned to such shares.

Series E CCD :

The Holding Company has issued Series E CCD with a face value of ¥ 1,000 and al a premium of 2 22,952 each and will be compulserily convertible into equity shares of the Helding Company upon the
occurrence of any of the following events:

Within the latest lime permitted under Applicable Law or prior to undertaking

the listing of the Equity Shares of the Company pursuant to a Qualified IPO, whichever is earlier

Atthe expiry of 9 years and 11 months from the date of issue of such Series E CCD;
Al any lime al the option of the Individual Invester, it may choose o convert its Series E CCD either in whole or in part).

Each Series E CCD shall convert into such number of equily shares which shall be initially In the ratio of 1:1 or to provide for any additional equity shares thal the Investor may require in arder to fully derive
the benefit of voling rights assigned to such shares,

Pursuant lo the approval of the Board of Direclors al Iheir meeting daled 9 Seplember 2023, the Holding Company has converled 390 (31 March 2023: 10) 13% CCD, of 1,000,000 each inte 4,394 520
equily shares (31 March 2023: 112,680) of T 1 each. Accordingly, on conversion the corresponding liability component has been derecognized and transferred lo equily.

Further, during the previous year, the caupon payments were modified for such CCDs from 8% to 13% and necessary impact for such modification has been accounted under finance cost.
Pursuant to approval of the Board of Directors al their meeting daled 25 July 2022, 3,306 Senes A CCPS of 2 1,000 each were converted into 661,200 equity shares of 1 each

Pursuant lo approval of the shareholders al Extra-ordinary General Meeting (EGM') dated 17 January 2023, the Holding Company has reclassiiied its authorised share capital by increasing 1,157,171,
0.0001% Preference Share Capital of face value of ¥ 1 each by  11.57 lakhs and reducing the equily share capital of face value of ¥ 1 each by the same amount.

Pursuant lo the resalulion approved by the Board of Directors through circular on 23 February 2023, the Holding Company has issued 1,156,498 Series G 0.0001% CCPS of ¥ 1 each at a premium of ¥
215.04 each.

Pursuant to approval of the shareholders al their EGM dated 28 July 2023, the Helding Company has increased its authorised share capilal by 2 15,000 lakhs to accommodate issue of 15,000,000 Series H
CCPS of 2 100 each.

On 15 September 2023, pursuant lo the share subscription and purchase agreement dated 2 August 2023 as amended by agreement dated 17 August 2023, the Halding Company has allolted 14,990,962
and 9,038 Series H CCPS of 2 100 each al par by way of private placement lo Verlical Holdings |l Ple. L.td and KIA EBT Scheme 3, respeclively.

Furlher, pursuant to the respeclive agreements enlered with the previous shareholders, Vertical Holdings |l Ple. Lid and KIA EBT Scheme 3 have acquired 6,515,551 and 3,264 equily shares of ¥ 1 each
from the previous shareholders. Also, pursuanl ta above agreements, Vertical Holdings |l Pte. Lid has acquired all the CCPS Series A, A-1. B. C, C-1, C-2, D, E. F and F-1 of the Holding Cempany from the
previous shareholders

During the current year. the Holding Company has issued 870,815 equity shares of face value of 1 each issued at par, pursuant to exercise of Employee Stock Oplion Schemes by the holders

Pursuant lo approval from the Board of Directors through circular on 23 February 2023, the Holding Company has issued 1,156,498 Series G 0.0001% CCPS Shares of 2 1 each at a premium of ¥ 215.04
each
Pursuant to the approval of the Board of Directors at their meeting daled 8 Movember 2023, the Holding Company converted 4,175, 0.0001% CCD of ¥ 1,000 each into 1,116,800 equity shares of 2 1 each.

Pursuant ta the share subscription and purchase agreement dated 2 August 2023 enlered with Vertical Holdings |l Ple. Lid, the Board of Direclors al its meeling held on 15 Seplember 2023 has approved a
proposal ta buy-back of 10% of the lalal issued and paid-up equity share having face value of ¥ 1 each al a price of ¥ 199.78 per share from Mr. Sunu Mathew for an aggregate amount not exceeding 3
5,698.80 lakhs. The shareholders al itls EGM held on 15 September 2023, has approved the buyback of equily shares and a lefter of offer was made to Mr. Sunu Mathew. On 12 September 2023, the
Halding Company completed the buyback of 2,852,539 fully paid-up equily shares having face value of ¥ 1 each al price of ¥ 199.78 per share by ulilizing securilies premium. In accordance with Seclion 69
of the Act. the Halding Company has crediled "Capital Redemption Reserve” by 2 28.53 lakhs. being amount equivalent to the face value of the equity shares bought back as an appropriation from securnties
premium

During the previous year, Series A, B, C OCRPS of ¥ 1.000 each were made fully paid up by making a call of ¥ 878 per share

During the current year, pursuanl to approval of the Board of Direclors daled @ September 2023, the Holding Company converted 4,174 Series A OCRPS, 5258 Serles B OCRPS and 5311 Senes C
OCRPS of  1.000 each into 2.948.600 equily shares of ¥ 1 each,

The Holding Company does not have a promoter accordingly disclosure relating to sharehelding of promalers is not applicable
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Other equity
As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Equity compenent of compound financial instruments - 209513
Reserve and Surplus
- Securilies premium 48,772.81 50,434 85
- Retained earninas 331842 (218.66)
- Share based paymenl reserve 64.32 271.41
- Capital redemption reserve [Refer note 18(n)] ' ’ ) 28.53 -
Total 52,184.08 52,582.53

MNote : For movement in other equily refer consolidated stalement of changes in equity.
Notes and purpose of other equity and reserves :

Equity component of compound financial instruments
Equily component of compound financial instruments represents equily component of 13% CCD.

Securities premium
Securities premium account is created when shares are jssued at premium. The Holding Company may utilise the securitfes premium account to issue fully paid-up bonus shares to its members, for buy
back of shares from its existing shareholders or otherwise, or to wrile off share issue expenses.

Retained earnings
Retained earnings represents the cumulative profit/ loss of the Group and effects of remeasurements of defined benefils abligations routed through other comprehensive income

Share based payment reserve
Share based paymen! reserve recognizes cumulative expenses lowards equily sellled awards or plans to employees, promoters ar management. The Holding Company will utilize the share based payment
reserve al the time of exercise of such awards.

Capital redemption reserve
Capilal redemplion reserve is crealed when buy-back of shares is out of free reserves, the nominal value of the shares so purchased is required to be transferred to capital redemption reserve from
distributable profit
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19.1 Other Equity (Contd.)
Employee stock option plan A-2019 and plan B -2022

The Holding Company has instituted an LEAP Employee Stock Option Scheme 2022 ("LEAP ESOP-B 2022") as approved by the Board of Directors for
issuance of stock options to the eligible employees of the Holding Company and of its subsidiary, other than the promoters or person belonging to
promoter group. In this scheme, the Group has a pool of 3,218,600 options.

The details of stock options granted by the Holding Company are as follows:

Particulars Grant date Number of options
LEAP ESOP-A 2019 6 October 2022 8,26,400
LEAP ESOP-B 2022 6 October 2022 3,98,595
Total 12,24 ,995

Summary of options granted under the Scheme A-2019 and B-2022

Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

No. of options Weighted average No. of options Weighted average

exercise price exercise price

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 12,24,995 1.00 - -
Granted during the year - - 12,24,995 1.00

Lapsed during the year (85,506) 1.00 - i

Exercised during the year (8,70,815) 1.00 = -

Cancellation during the year (Refer note below) (68,674) 1.00 - -
Outstanding at the end of the year 2,00,000 1.00 12,24,995 1.00

Exercisable at the end of the year - - - -

During the current year, the Holding Company has repurchased vested options at fair value, pursuant to which ¥ 137.19 lakhs (31 March 2023 : Nil) has
been debited o other equily. Pursuant to repurchase, the Holding Company has paid ¥ 137.19 lakhs in the current year.

The amounts recognised for employee service received during the year is shown in the following table:

Particulars As at As at

31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expense arising from equity-settied share-based payment transactions (net) 286.26 271.41
Total share based payments expense (net) 286.26 271.41

The fair value has been calculated using the Black Scholes Options Pricing Model and the significant assumptions made in this regard are as

follows:
Particulars As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Risk free interesl rate (%) 7.40% 7.40%
Expected life (years) 6.5 6.5
Expected volatility (%) 38.90% 38.90%
Expected dividend yield (%) 0% 0%
Exercise price (%) 1.00 1.00 l
Stock price (%) 51.20 51.20

The expecled life of the share oplions are based on historical data and current expectations and is nol necessarily indicative of exercise patterns thal
may occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption thal the histerical volatility over a period similar to the life of the options is indicative of fulure
trends, which may not necessarily be the aclual cutcome.
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory V1o the fi ial as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024
(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)
. As at As al
e 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

20 Borrowings - Non current

A) Debentures - measured at amortised cost
i) Liability component of compound financial instruments [Refer note 18{7)] - 1,960 66
(31 March 2023: 390), 13% CCD of T 1,000,000 each (unsecured).
Issued 400 CCD on 10 July 2018 for lenure of 10 years al a premium of ¥ 2,815 per CCD. These CCD carry a coupon rate of 13% p.a.
payable semi-annually. i.e. 30 June and 31 December of each calendar year. These CCD are converlible inlo equity share not |aler than
10 years.

B) Term loans from banks - Secured
) 1) This lean carnes an interest rate of 9.20% to 10.30% p.aand Is repayable in 20 equal quarery instalment commencing from August 4,234.97 8,523.94
2023 and ending on May 2028.
2) This loan is secured by firsl pari pasu charge by way of hypothecation on all present and fulure moveable fixed assels, excepl DSRA
and is secured by lien on fixed deposit of T 508,64 lakhs (31 March 2023;  735.64 lakhs),
3) The loan was secured by second pari passue charge on all borrowers current assels and receivables including book debls, operating
cash flows, receivables, commissions, revenues of whalsoever nalure and wherever arising present and fulure.

The loan carries an interest rate of 9.25% - 10.30% p.a, and is repayable in 22 quarerly structured instalments commencing from March - 2,208.80
2022 and ending on June 2027

The loan is securad by:

1) First pari-passu securily interest on the entire assets, both movables (excluding current assets} and immaovables of the Borrawer,
presenl and fulure;

2) First pari-passu security interest on the entire currenl assels including receivables of ihe Borrower, present and future;

3) First pari-passu security interest by way of hypothecation/ assignmenl or creation of securily interest; exclusive securily interest on the
debl service reserve accounl crealed for facilities provided by Axis Bank:

4) First pari-passu charge over Escrow Accounl;

5) First pari-passu security interes! on the brand name, inlangibles, goodwill, i properly
belanging to the barower,

d capital (present and fulure)

il The loan carries an interest rate of 8.25% - 9.25% p.a.(31 March 2023: 8.26% p.a.) and is repayable in quarterly structured instaiments 7.726.32 8.739.34
(including a moratarium of 2 quarters) commencing from September 2021 and ending on September 2026.

The loan amounting lo 2 200 lakhs (31 March 2023: Nil) carries inleresl rales from B.77 % lo 9.23 % and is repayable in 66 monthly

instalment July 2023 (o December 2028

=

The above loans are secured by,

1) Second pari passu charge on all Borrower's current assels and receivables including book debls, operating cash flows, receivables,
commissions, revenues of whatsoever nature and wherever arising, present and fulure;

2) First pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all Borrower's intanglble assets, including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled
capital, intellectual propery rights and underiaking, present and fulure;

3) First pari passu charge by way of hypothecalion on all Borrower's langible movable assels, including movable plant and machinery,
machinery spares, tools and accessories, furniture, fixtures, vehicles and all olher movable assets, present and fulure;

4) Securily lo be al par wilh other working capital lenders.

5) First pari-passu securily interesl by way of hypothecation/ assignmenl or crealion of securily interes! in all the rights, lille, interest,
benefits. claim and demands whatsoever of the Borrower (including any lelter of credit, guarantee, performance bond provided by any
counterparty fo the borrower and the insurance cantracls, palicies, insurance proceeds, procured by the Borrower or procured by any of
its contractors favouring the Borrower/ Project).

8) First pari-passu on all bank accounls (including Escrow) and reserves of Borrower, other reserves and any other bank accounls of the
Borrower.

7) The above loans are secured by lien on fixed deposit of ¥ 545.00 |akhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 948.00 lakhs)

iv). The loan carries an inferes! rate of 8.85% - 9.65% p.a. (31 March 2023: 9.15%) and is repayable in 20 structured guarerly instalments 2,599.50 2.691.19
commencing from September 2023 and ending in December 2028,

These loans are secured by!

1) Second pari passu hypothecalion charge over all existing and fulure current assels including book debls, opt cash flows, receivables,
commission . revenues of whatsoever nalure.

2) Firsl pari passu hypothecalion charge over all existing and fulure tangible moveabls fixed assels Including movable P&M, machinery
spares , lools and accessaries, furnilure |, fixture, vehicles & all other movable assels,

3) First pari passu hypolhecalion charge aver intangible assels including bul not limiled to. i capital, i property
rights and underaking.

4) First pari passu hypolhecalion charge over the Escrow account (housed wilh HDFC Bank) of the Borrower.

5) Exclusive charge over the DSRA crealed for facilities provided by the Bank.

6) Personal Guaraniees of Mr. Sunu Mathew.

v) This loan carries an interest rate of 8.90% - 8.96% p.a and is repayable in 22 equal quarerly instalment commencing from March 2025 6,988.46 -
and ending August 2030,
1) First pari passu charge on all current assels (Including bank accounts & excluding DSRA Accounl created exclusively for the benefit
of other lenders) of the borrower.
2) Second pari passu on movable fixed assets and inlangibles with & minimum assel cover of 1.50x,
3) Personal guarantees of Mr. Sunu Mathew

vi) This loan carnes an interest rate of 8.70% - 8.80% p.a and is repayable in 26 equal quarerly instalment commencing from March 12,482 30 -
2025 and ending June 2031,
1) Firsl pari passu charge by way of hypolhecalion an all movable fixed assels (bolh present and fulure) of the borrower.
2) First pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on ail inlangible assels including bul not limited to goodwill. uncalled capilal,
intellectual property rights {both present and fulure) of the borrower.
3) Second pari-passu charge on all current assets (bolh present and fulure) of the barrower.
4) Firsl pari passu charge by way of hypothecalion on escrow account of the borrower,
vii) This is an equipment finance term Ipan availed for financing the equipment purchase by the borrower. This loan carries an inlerest rale 690.68 861.46
of 8.50% - 8.75% p.a. and is repayable in 59 monthly slruclured inslallments commencing from August 2022 and ending in Oclober
2027

The loan is secured against the equipment purchased (forklift) and is also guaranteed by the Holding Group by means of a corporate
quaraniee
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatary information to the consolidated financial stalements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
vill) This is an equipment finance lerm loan availed for financing the equipment purchase by the borrower. This loan carnes an interest rate 168.94 19581
of 9.25% p.a. which is repayable in 58 monthly structured instalments with two months moratorium period commencing fram Augusl
2022 and ending in October 2027
The loan is secured against the equipment purchased (forklift).
ix) This is an equipment finance lerm loan availed for financing the equipmeant purchase by the borrower. This loan carries an interest rate: : 989.23 &
of 9.00% p.a. which is repayable in 58 manthly instalments with ene months moratorium period cammencing from March 2024 and
ending In January 2029.
The loan is secured against the equipment purchased (forklift).
%) This is an equipmen! finance term loan availed for financing the equipment purchase by the borrower. This loan carrias an interesl rale 41563 -
of 9.00% p.a. which is repayable in 48 monihly instalments with one months maralarium period commencing frem September 2023 and
ending in Augusl 2029
The loan Is secured against the equipment purchased (forklift).
i) The loan carries an interesl rale of 10.95% p.a and is repayable in 24 quarterly struclured instalments commencing from February 2023 3,300.00 3.500.00
and ending in February 2029
10.80% p.a. payable monthly to be linked to Axis Bank MCLR Rale of Interest = [Prevailing Axis Bank 1 Year MCLR &t the time of
disbursement + Spread (2.05%)] MCLR 1 Year as on 17 December 2022- 8.75%
The loan is secured by:
1) First ranking pari-passu charge on mortgage of immovable property,
2) First exclusive charge on maortgage of immavable property,
3) First exclusive charge hypothecation on all the present and future movable fixed assets of the barrower,
4) First ranking pari-passu hypothecation on all current assets both present and fulure including but nat limited lo book debls,
receivables, insurance proceeds and cash flow generated from the borrawer's undariakings, cammissions, reimbursements, and
revenue of whatsoever nature both present and fulure;
5) Personal guarantees of Mr, Sunu Mathew (Director)
%ily This is a term loan facilily under construction equipment finance scheme which carries an interesl rate of 7.856% p.a. and is repayable in 26,70 51.69
48 monthly structured instalments commencing from April 2021 and ending in March 2025
The loan is secured by
1) The whole of the current assets of the borrower's stock of raw material, semi finished and finished goods, stores and spares including
relating lo plant and machinery (consumables stores and spares), bills receivable and book debts and all other receivables and
moveable, both present and future:
2) The whale of the movable fixed assets of the borrowar's including plant and machinery of the borrower |
3) All the book debts and receivables (both present and fulure) of the borrower including outstanding monies receivable, claims and bills
which are now due.
xiil) This loan carries an interesl rate of 8.25% p.a. It is repayable in 48 monthly struclured instalments commencing from Cclaber 2020 and 1287 3747
ending in September 2024,
The loan Is secured against the equipment purchased.
xiv) The loan carries an inlerest rate of 7.41% p.a. and is repayable in 37 monthly structured instalments commencing from June 2021 and 8.03 38.79
ending in June 2024. The loan is secured against the equipment purchased:
xv) The loan carries an inlerest rate of 7 16% - 9.25% p.a. and Is repayable in 35 lo 48 monthly struclured instalments. The loan is secured 1,696.49 64512
against Ihe equipment purchased,
xvi) The loan carries an interesl rate c['9.25% p.a. and is repayable in 48 monthly struclured instaliments The loan is secured against the 371.95 -
equipment purchased.
C) Terms loans fram Non Banking Financial Institutions - Secured
i) The loan carries an inlerest rale 8.80% and Is repayable in 24 equal guarterly instalments commencing from March 2025 and ending on 7.536.29 -
December 2030
These loans are secured by
1) Firs Pari passu charge on Ihe entire fixed assels (movable & immovable) of the Group
2) Firsl Pari passu charge on brand name, Intangibles, goodwill, intellectual capital of barrower
3) First Parn passu charge on lhe escrow account for rouling 100% of the cashflows
4) First pari passu charge on he currenl assets of the Group
i) The loan carries an interes rate 8.80% and is repayable in 20 quarterly instaliments commencing fram April 2021 and ending on April B 3.511.20
2026.
1) First pari paasu charge by way of hypothecation on all present and fulure fixed and currenl assels of the barrower
2) Pari passu charge on Escrow/ TRA of cash flows pertaining to at least 70% of the total revenue of the barrower
3) Unconditional and irrevocable guarantee from the promoter.
4) Debt Service Reserve Account (DSRA) of amount 2 61.88 lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 648.43 lakhs) equivalent lo debl servicing
(interest-and principal) for the next 3 months to be created upfront and maintained at all times
i) The loan carries an interest rate 925% - 9.60% p.a (31 March 2023 9.25%) -and is repayable in 20 structured quarerly instalments - 2.488.96
cofmimencing from January 2023 and ending in January 2029
These loans are secured by:
1 Eirst pari passu charge by way of martgage/hypathecation o enlire fixed assel including immoveable and moveable of the borrawer
both present and fulure;
2 First pari passu charge by way of hypothecation an entire curren! assets both present and future,
3 Personal guarantaes of Mr. Sunu Mathew.
Less Currenl maturities of leng term borrowings (Refer note 22 o\’\’\ND'Ofr(f 739040 - 0821
" 41,847.96 28,245.92
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Summary of material accounting policies and other explanatory information to the consoelidated financial statements as at and for the year ended 31 March 2024

(Amount in ¥ lakhs, except for share data, and if otherwise stated)

201

21

22

221

i)

Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

An analysis of nel debl and lhe movement in net debts for each of the reporting period is as follows:

As at As at
Particulars 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Cash and cash equivalents (851.41) (823.12)
Non-current borrowings (including current maturilies) 49,238.36 3545413
Lease liabilities 5,843.03 531052
Current borrowings 2,068.85 -
Net debt 56,298.83 39,841.53

Liabilities from financing activities

Non-current

Particulars Lesse liabilitias borrowings Current Cash and cash
(including current borrowings equivalents
maturities)
Balance as at 1 April 2022 2,921.03 27,253.18 3,224.17 (2,343.486)
Cash flows (net) = - - 1,420.34
New leases 6,354 63 - - -
Proceeds from leng term borrowings z 14,985.04 - -
Repayment of long term barrowings - (7.604.71) - -
Repayment of short lerm borrowings = - (3.224.17) =
Principal repayment of lease liabilities (1.718.83) - = -
Additions en acquisition of Skan Marine Services Private Limited (Refer note 49) = 43.23 -
Interest expense 473.79 2.968.34 1673 -
Loss on extinguishment of compulsorily convertible debentures - 701.24 - &
Termination of leases (2,246.21) = = .
Interest paid (473.79) (2,845.71) (116.73)
Conversion of compaund financial instrument (CCD) - (36 49) - -
Balance as at 31 March 2023 5,310.52 36,454.12 - (923.12)
Cash flows (nel) - - 2,068.85 7.7
New leases 4,863.61 - - -
Proceeds from long term borrowings A 33.877.48 - -
Repayment of long lerm borrowings - (18,538.21) -
Principal repayment of lease liabilities (2,370.89) - - -
Interest expense 550.59 4,23599 270.05 -
Termination of leases (1,960.11) - - -
Interest paid (550.59) (4,069.59) {270.05) -
Canversion of compoeund finansial instrument (CCD) - (1,721.42) - -
Balance as at 31 March 2024 5,843.03 49,238.37 2,068.85 (861.41)
As at As at

Non-current provisions
Provision for employee benefits (Refer note 39)

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

- Gratuity 129.08 8628
Total 129.09 16.28
Borrowings (current)

Current maturities of long term borrowings

- Term loans from banks 7.030.69 6.008:21

- Terms loans fram non banking financial institutions 359 51 1.200.00
(Refer note 20 for securily and repaymenl details)

Working capital loans: (Refer note 22 1)

- Working capital demand loan facilities 300.00 =

- Cash credit 1,768.85 a
Total 9,469.25 7,208.21

Nature of securities
Secured

Working capital demand loan of ¥ 300.00 lakhs (31 March 2023: Nil) obtained from bank |s secured by.
a Second pari passu charge by way of hypothecation on all barrower's inlangible assels including but not limited to goodwill, uncalled capital, intellectual property rights and undertaking,

present and fulure.

b. Second pari passu charge by way of hypolhecalion on ail borrower's langible movable assets including movable plant and machinary. machinery spares, lools and accessories,

furniture: fixtures, vehicles and all other movable assets prasent and fulure.

The rate of interest is 8.25% - 8.25% per-annum

Cash cradit of ¥ 046 lakhs (31 March 2023; Nil) obtained from a bank which is repayable on demand and is secured by

. Second pari-passu securily interest on the entire assets, both movables (excluding current assets) and immovables of the borrower, present and future;
ii. First pari-passu security inlerest on the entire current assats including receivables of the borrower, present and fulure:

jil. Firsl pari-passu security interest by way of hypothecation/ assignment or creation of securily interest in:

a all the rights, lille, interest, benefits. daim and demands whatsoever of the borrower
b. all the rights, title, interes!, benefils, clam and demands whatsoever of the borrower in any letter of credil, guarantee. performance bond provided by any counterparty to the borrower
¢ all bank accounts (ncluding Escrow) and reserves of barrower olher reserves and any olher bank accounts of the borrower whether maintained and account (s} in substitution thereof,
and in all non-fund based reserves maintained by woy of lellers of creditbank guarantees or otherwise and in all monies lying to credil of such account {s) and in all investments made
from moenies lying to credit of such accaunt (s) excluding DSRA created exclusively for the benefil of other lenders of the borrower

d all the rights, litle. interest. benefils, claim and demands whatsoever of the borrower in the

insurance conlracts policies. insurance proceeds, procured by the borrower or procured by any of its contractors favouring the barrower! project

The rale of interest on cash credil Is 9.85% - 10% par annum

Cash credit of 2 1,216.00 lakhs (31 March 2023 Nil) obtained from & bank which is repayable on demand &nd is secured by
a First Pari Passu charge by way of hypothecation of all current assets (bath present and future) of the borrower

b. First pari passu charge by way of hypothecalion on escrow account of the borrower
c¢. Second pari passu charge by way of hypothecalion on all movable fixad assets (both present and future) of the barrower

the borrower
The rate of interest on cash credit is 9 05% per annum
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iv)

23

24

25

25.1

25.2

26

Cash credil of ¥ 552 39 lakhs (31 March 2023 Nil) oblained from bank is secured by:
a. Pledged of open ended debl mutusl funds held by the Holding Company amounling to ¥ 5,180.02 lakhs.
The loan carries an interest rale of 9% p.a. 1o be linked to |-MCLR 6M and spread.

Trade payables

Tolal outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises
Total aulstanding dues of credilors other than micro and small enterprises

Total
Ageing of Trade Payables

As at 31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

24815
449652

40.97
4,742,685

A,744.67

4,783.82

Particulars

Outstanding from the date of transaction

Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed:

Dues to micro and small enterprises
Dues of creditors-other than micro and
small enterprises

Disputed:

Dues to micro and small enterprises
Dues of ereditors other than micro
and small enterprises

240.01 4.31 017 366

324412 1,169.74 67.29 11.45 392

248.15
4,496.52

Total

3,244.12 1,409.75 71.60 11.62 7.58

4,744.67

As at 31 March 2023

Particulars

Outstanding from the dale of ransaction

Unbilled Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years

Total

Undisputed:

Dues to micro and small enterprises
Dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises

Disputed:

Dues to micro and small enterprises
Dues of creditors other than micro
and small enterprises

= 40.97 - - -
1,844.81 2,898.04 - - “

40.97
4,742.86

Tolal

1,844.81 2,939.01 - -

4,783.82

Other current financial liabilities
Payable for capilal goods
Employee relaled payables

Total

Other current liabilities
Advance from customer
Statulory dues payable
Revenue received in advance
Securily deposits*

Other liabllities

Total

Movement in revenue received in advance

As at
31 Mareh 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Particulars

Balance al the beginning of the year

Add: Revenue received in advance from

Less: invoice raised during the year

Balance as al end of the year

Movement in advance from customers

Particulars

Balance al the beginning of the year

Less: Invoice raised during (he year

Add: Advance given during the year

Balance as at end of the year

Current provisions

Provision for employee benefils (Refer nole 39)

- Gratuity
- Compensaled absences

3.610.74 7,541.34
355.33 254.94
3,966.07 7.836.28
42971 201.24
195.54 120.74
333.04 =
10.21 13.81
2.00 4.87
970.50 410.76
* Securily deposits collecled from cuslomers are 1o be adjusted agains! the outslanding receivables al the end of contract period.
Asat Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
333.04 -
333.04 -
As al Asat
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
201.34 157.04
(63.42) (122.04)
201.79 166.34
429.71 201.34
87.51 67.50
2522 27.50
112.73 95.00

Total
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Year ended Year ended

Ll 31 March 2024 31 March 2023

27

(

(ii)

28

29

Revenue from operations

(a) Sale of products 1,089.38 567.32
(b) Sale of services ’ ) 34,914.24 24,276.70
(c) Other cperating revenues 493.46 502.66

36,497.08 25,336.68

Information of disaggregated revenue as per Ind AS 115
(A) Based on nature of product or service:

(a) Sale of products:
Sale of traded goods

- Pallets 773.61 383.63
- Lumber - 156.27
- Forklift 312.57 10.12
- Others 3.20 8.30

1,089.38 557.32

(b) Sale of services
Rental income and other incidental services:

- Pallets 25,048.73 20,210.70
- Foldable large containers (FLC) and crates 2,852.26 3,072.57
- Utility box 54417 187.56
- Belts and wedges 67.96 58.71
- Material handling equipments 6,401.12 747.16
34,914.24 24,276.70

(c) Other operating revenue
Sale of scrap 493.46 410.60
Excess provision written back - 92.06
493,46 502.66
Total revenue from operations 36,497.08 25,336.68

(B) Based on timing of revenue recognition:

Products transferred at a point of time 1,089.38 557.32
Services transferred at a point of time 34,914.24 24,276.70

The amounts receivable from custemers become due after expiry of credit peried which on an average ranges belween 7-90
days. There is no significant financing component in any transaction with the customers. The Group does not have any remaining
performance obligation as contracts entered for sale of goods and services are for a shorter duration. Further, the Group's entire
business falls under one operational segment of 'Pooling of resources’.

There is no reconciling items in revenue from operations with contract price as required by Ind AS 115,

The following lable gives details in respect of contract revenues generated from the top customer and top 5 customers for the
year ended March 2024:

Revenue from top customer 5,382.68 3,708.67
Revenue from {op five customers 11,172.44 7,363.01

For the year ended 31 March 2024 one (1) [31 March 2023: one (1)] customer individually accounted for more than 10% of the
total revenue.

Other income
Interest income

- on bank deposits 102.00 111.26
- onh financial assets measured at amortised cost 21.96 16.47
- on income tax refund 21.56 48.08
- on sales tax / VAT refund - 72.04
Net gain due to change in fair value of current investments 183.80 19.99
Dividend income on non-current investments - 0.29
Gain on termination of lease (Refer note 37) 148.62 204.70
Gain on sale of property, plant and equipment (net) 189.09 -
Gain on sale of investment, debenture and bonds 16.97
Foreign exchange gain (net) 6.48 -
Miscellaneous 6.80 7.01
697.28 479.84
Purchase of stock-in-trade
Pallets 697.12 496.77
Forklift 266.47 38.89

963.59 535.66
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30 Changes in inventories of stock-in-trade

At the end of the year
Slock-in-frade (Refer note 10)

At the beginning of the year
Stock-in-trade (Refer note 10)
Stock-in-irade on the date of acquisition of Skan Marine Services Private
Limited (Refer note 49)

31 Employee henefits expense
Salaries, wages and bonus
Share based payment expense (net) (Refer note 19.1)
Contribution to provident fund (Refer note 39)
Staff welfare expenses

32 Finance costs
Interest expense on financial liabilities measured at amortised cost
- debentures (Refer note 40)
- term loans

Interest expense on:

- cash credit

- lease liabilities (Refer nole 37)

- loss on extinguishment of compulsarily convertible debentures [Refer note 18(F)
- others

33 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment expenses
Depreciation on property, plant and eguipment (Refer note 3)
Amortisation on intangible assets (Refer note 5)
Depreciation on right-of-use assets (Refer note 37)
Impairment of property, plant and equipment (Refer note 3)

34 Other expenses
Contract labour
Repairs and maintenance
Rent (Refer noles 37 and 40)
Rates and taxes
Insurance
Loss on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Software
Marketing
Conveyance and travelling
Packing, freight and transport (net of recoveries)
Legal and professional fees
Carporate social responsibility
Auditors' remuneration
Office
Power and fuel
Farklift inspeclion
Provision for expecled loss
Loss on sale of invesiments
Miscellaneous

Year ended

Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

0.33 41.52
41 .52 1.64
- 8.72
4119 (31.16)
5,578.14 2,793.21
286,26 271.41
31575 109.23
60.57 38.12
6,240.72 3,211.97
101.08 189.35
4,134.91 2,592.37
4,235.99 2,781.72
270.05 116.73
550.59 473.79
. 701 24
3.60 170.72
824.24 1,462.48
5,060.23 4,244,20
6,321.04 4,963.00
115.13 43.05
2,660.03 1,975.97
2,164.68 420.78
11,260.88 7,402.80
1,168.61 1,181.87
2,950.16 3,562.01
140.22 154.39
136.55 49.41
138.25 112,79
= 0.19
182,69 135.91
254,12 234.02
367.42 243.89
2,731.07 2,586.97
417 35 563.61
52.65 25.26
68.18 72.75
17.91 -
5.01 2.20
3.36 -
180.72 507.80
. 10.94
150.87 27.82
8,957.14 9,470.83
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Year ended

Year ended

31 March 2024 31 March 2023

Other comprehensive income
Iltems that will not be reclassified subsequently to the statement of profit or loss

Gain on fair value of defined benefit plans as per actuarial valuation 519 9.72

Tax effect on above (1.30) (1.43)
3.89 8.29 |

Earnings per share (EPS)

Profit computation for both basic and diluted earnings per share

Net profit atlributable te equity share holders for basic and diluted earnings per share 3,717.32 901.13

Computation of weighted average number of equity shares for basic earning per share :

Weighted average equity shares oulstanding during the year 2,42,23,439 2,05,67,102

Add : Effect of conversion:

Compulsorily convertible preference shares 8,24 40,779 7,90,19,698

Compulsorily converltible debentures 26,07 ,460 55,08,611

Number of shares for basic earning per share 10,92,71,678 10,50,95,411

Computation of weighted average number of equity shares for diluted earnings per share :

Number of shares for basic earning per share 10,92,71,678 10,50,95,411

Add: Potential dilution on exercise of employee stock oplions 1,98,999 5,80,444

Add: Polential dilution cn conversion of optionally convertible redeemable 12,97,062 29,48,600

preference shares

Weighted average number of Equity shares adjusted for the effect of dilution 11,07,67,739  10,86,24,455

Earnings/(loss) per share of face value ¥ 1 each

Basic (in T) 3.40 0.86

Diluted (in %) ‘ 3.36 0.83

Nominal value per share (in ) 1.00 1.00
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37 Leases -Ind AS 116

A Group as lessee:

The Group's leased assets primarily consist of leases for office premises and warehouse. Leases of office premises and warehouses
generally have lease lerm belween 1 to 5 years. The Group has applied low value exemption for leases laptops, lease lines, furniture and
equipment and accordingly are excluded from Ind AS 116. The leases includes non cancellable periods and renewable uptlon at the
discretion of lessee which has been taken into consideration for detefmination of lease ferm.

i) Set out below are the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets recognised and the movements during the year:

Amount (% lakhs)

Gross carrying value Buildings

As at 01 April 2022 3,721.44

Additions 6,400.96

Disposal (3,233.38)
As at 31 March 2023 6,889.02

Additions* 4,967.59

Disposal (2,634.41)
As at 31 March 2024 9,222.20

Accumulated depreciation

As at 01 April 2022 966.18
Depreciation expenses 1,9756.97
Accumulated depreciation on disposals (1,191.86)
As at 31 March 2023 1,750.29
Depreciation expenses ' 2,660.03
Accumulated depreciation on disposals (775.72)
As at 31 March 2024 3,634.60

Net carrying value
As at 31 March 2023 ‘ 6,138.73
As at 31 March 2024 5,687.60

(*) The above addition is post netting off ¥ 61.64 lakhs (31 March 2023: ¥ 471.89 lakhs) pertaining to present value of security deposits
given for warehouses taken on lease.

Set oul below are the carrying amounts of lease liabilities and the movements during the year:

Particulars Amount (Z lakhs)
As at 1 April 2022 2,921.03
Additions 6,354.63
Termination(**) (2,246.21)
Accretion of inferest 473.79
Payment of lease obligation (2,192.72)
As at 31 March 2023 5,310.52
Current 2,040.69
Non-current 3,269.83
Particulars Amount (¥ lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023 5,310.52
Additions 4,863.61
Termination(**) (1,960.11)
Accretion of interest 550.59
Payment of lease obligation (2,921.58)
As at 31 March 2024 5,843.03
Current 2,053.41
Non-current 3,789.62

(**) The Group has terminaled certain lease agreements during the year due to operational reasons, owing to which, the Group has
accounled an income of ¥ 148.62 lakhs (31 March 2023 : ¥ 204.70 lakhs) on such terminations.

iii) The table below provides details regarding contractual maturities of lease !iabilities as at closing date on an undiscounted hasis:

iv) Refer note 34 for expenses relating te short-

Particulars o 10\
~ [ \A B 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
K ; L // e L\

Less than one year ;u 2,439.50 3.706.17

One lo five years ( ! ) 3,801.98 4,007.72
More than five years / \ \ - -
7 T /
\d low value assets.\i_:..‘""J

The Group does nol face a significant liquidity risk with regard to lease liabililies as the current assels are sufficient to meel the obligations
related lo lease liabililies as and when they are due.
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38 Commitments and Contingencies
As at As at
31 March 2024 31 March 2023

(a) Commitmeﬁts

Capital commitments (Net of capital advances) 1,408.33 1,072.78

(b) Contingent liabilities
GST demand 10.92 10.92

Based on the judgement by the Honourable Supreme Court dated 28 February 2019, past provident fund liability, is not determinable at present,
in view of uncertainty on the applicability of the judgement to the Group with respect to timing and the components of its compensation structure.
In absence of further clarification, the Group has been legally advised to await further developments in this matter to reasonably assess the
implications on its financial statements, if any.
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l)

A)

B)

C)

Gratuity and other post-employment henefit plans
Defined benefit plan (unfunded)
The Group provides for gratuity benefit under a defined benefit retirement scheme (the “Gratuity Scheme”) as laid out by the Payment of Gratuity
Act, 1972 of India covering eligible employees i.e. an employee who has completed five years of service is entitled to specific benefits. The level
of benefits provided depends on the member's length of service and salary at retirement age.
Liabilities with regard to the Gratuity Scheme are determined by actuarial valuation carried out using the Prmeaied Unit Credit Method by an
independent acluary.
The scheme is neither funded with an insurance company in the form of qualifying insurance policy, nor any assets have been created.
Balance Sheet
. As at As at
Particulars
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Changes in the present value of obligation
Present value of obligation at the beginning of the year 163.78 68.12
Adjustment on acquisition of Skan Marine Services Private Limited - 60.51
Current service cost 55.64 41.37
Interest cost 11.96 8.74
Past service cost - -
Benefits paid (9.59) (5.24)
Re-measurement (or acluarial) (gain) / loss arising from: A 5
- change in demographic assumplions (5.90) -
- change in financial assumptions 1.25 (8.91)
- experience variance (i.e. Actual experiences assumptions) (0.54) (0.81)
Present value of obligation at the end of the year 216.60 163.78
Bifurcation of present value of obligation at the end of the year as per revised Schedule Ill of the Companies Act, 2013
Classification of provisions
Current liability (Short term) 87.51 67.50
Non current liability (Long term) 129.09 06.28
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet 216.60 163.78
Statement of profit and loss
Baiticiilar As at As at
L 31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss
Current service cost 55.64 41.35
Net interest cost 11.96 8.74
Total expenses recognised in the Statement of profit and loss 67.60 50.09
(Gain)/ loss recognised in the other comprehensive income
Re-measurement (or actuarial) (gain) / loss arising from: - .
- change in demographic assumptions (5.90) =
- change in financial assumptions 1.25 (8.91)
- experience Variance (i.e. actual experiences assumptions) (0.54) (0.81)
Components of defined benefit costs recognised in other comprehensive income (5.19) (9.72)
The principal assumptions used in determining gratuity for the Group’s plans are shown helow:
31 March 2024 31 March 2023
Discount rale 7.15% 7.25% -7.45%
Salary growth rate 5.5% - 10% 10%
Age of retirement 58 - 60 years 58 - 60 years
Altrition / Withdrawal rates: (per annum)
White collar 5% - 68% 5% - 77%
Blue collar 47% - 68% 5% - 58%
Upto 30 years 25% 25%
31-40 years 25% 25%
41-50 years 25% 25%
Above 51 years 25% 25%
100% Indian 100% Indian
Assured Lives Assured Lives

Mortality (table) Mortality (2012-14) Morlality (2012-14)

Ultimate Ultimate
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D)

E)

1)

)

The discount rate is based on the prevailing markel yields of Indian governmenl securities as at the balance sheel date for the estimated term of

the obligations.

The estimates of future salary increases, considered in actuarial valuation, take account of inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant

factors, such as supply and demand in the employment market,

Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation

Weighted average duration (based on discounted cashflows)

Expected cash flows over the next (valued on undiscounted basis):
1 year

2 lo 5 years

6 to 10 years

More than 10 years

Sensitivity Analysis:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

1-12 years

18.73
65.68
43.03
18.62

4 years

68.18
82.67
34.69
30.21

Significant actuarial assumptions for the delermination of the defined benefit obligation (DBO) are discount rate, expected salary increase and
mortality. The sensitivily analysis below have been delermined based on reasonably possible changes of the assumptions occurring at the end of
the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant. The results of the sensitivity analysis is given below:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

Decrease
Delta Effect of ( -/+ 1%) change in discount rate 106.63
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 4.60%
Delta Effect of ( -/+ 1%) change in salary growth rate 98.24
(% change compared to base due {o sensitivily) -3.70%
Della Effect of ( -/+ 50%) change in attrition rate 122.43
(% change compared to base due to sensilivily) 20.10%
Delta Effect of { -/+ 10%) change in mortality rate 101.97
(% change compared to base due to sensitivity) 0.00%

Increase

97.68
-4.20%
1056.92

3.9%

89.74

-12.00%
101.99
0.00%

86.64
4.50%
79.92
-3.60%
98.01
18.30%
82.86
0.00%

79.39
-4.20%
85.98
3.8%
73.81
-10.90%
82.88
0.00%

The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligation as it is unlilely that the
change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be correlated. There was no change in the

methods and assumptions used in preparing the sensitivily analysis from prior years.

Compensated absences

The obligations for compensated absences as at year end amounts to ¥ 25.22 lakhs (31 March: 2023: 27.50 lakhs)

Defined contribution plan

Amount recognised as an expense and included in the Note as "Contribution to provident fund" under note 31 is ¥ 315.75 lakhs (31 March 2023:

¥109.23 lakhs)
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40 Disclosure in accordance with Ind AS 24 Related Party Disclosures
a) Names of related parties and description of relationship:
Description of relationship Names of related parties
(i) Entity having control Verlical Holdings Il PTE Limited
(i) Key managerial person (KMP) # Mr. Sunu Mathew - Managing Director
Mrs. Bindu Mathew - Director (upto 14 September 2023)
(i) Relative of key management personnel # Mrs. Bindu Mathew
(iv) Enterprises over which key managerial personnel are able to|Packaging Holding LLP
exercise significant influence #
# To the extent where fransactions have taken place and control
b) Related party transactions :

Mr. Sunu Mathew

Year ended
31 March 2024

Year ended
31 March 2023

Remuneralion 148.07 178.07

Reimbursement of expenses on behalf of the Group 2.29 1413

Rent paid 11.45 10.28

Buyback of equity shares [Refer note 18 (n)] 5,698.81 -

Mrs. Bindu Mathew

Rent paid 11.45 10.28

Vertical Holdings Il PTE Limited -

Issue of Series H CCPS [Refer note 18 (j)] 15.000.00

Packaging Holding LLP

Interest on Compulsorily Convertible Debentures (CCD) 101.08 189.35
¢) Balance outstanding as at the year end As at As at

Payahles
Mr. Sunu Mathew

Receivables
Mr. Sunu Mathew

Liahility component of compound financial instrument
Packaging Holding LLP

Notes:

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

0.99

6.62

1,960.66

a) The remuneration to KMP does not include provision for gratuity and compensated absences as separate figures are not
available.

b) Refer notes 20 and 22.1 for guarantees and securilies provided by the related parlies, in respect of borrowing facililies availed
by the Group.

c) Related parly transaclions were made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions.

d) Refer sub-note 2 in the consclidated statement of cash flows for non-cash movement in relation to conversion of compulsorily
convertible debentures and optionally convertible redeemable preference shares.
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41 Fair value measurements

LEAP India Private Limited

(i) Fair value hierarchy

The fair values of lhe financial assels and liabilities are included at the amount thal would be received to sell an assel or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participant al the measurement date.
This seclion explains lhe judgments and estimales rmade in determining the fair values of the financial instruments that are (a) recognised and measured at fair value and (b)
measured al amorlised cosl and for which fair values are disclosed in the financial stalements. To provide an indicalion aboul the reliability of the inpuls used in determining fair
value, the Group has classified its financial instruments into the three levels prescribed under lhe accounting standard. An explanation of each level follows underneath the table.

Level 1 : Level 1 hierarchy includes financial instruments measured using quoled prices. This includes listed equily instruments, traded bonds and mutual funds that have quoted

price. The fair value of all equity instruments (including bonds) which are lraded in the slock exchanges are valued using the closing price as al the reporting period.

Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active marke! (for example, traded bonds, over-the counter derivalives) is delermined using valuation
techniques which maximise the use of observable markel data and rely as little as possible on entily-specific eslimates. If all significant inputs required o fair value an instrument
are observable, the instrument is included in leve| 2.

Level 3: If one or more of the significant inpuls is not based on observable markel data, the instrument is included in level 3.

(ii) Valuation technique used to determine fair value

Specific valuation techniques used lo value financial instrumenls include:
- lhe use of quoted market prices or dealer quoles for similar instruments
- lhe use of discounted cash flow for fair value at amorlised cosl

(iii) Assets and liabilities which are measured at amortised cost for which fair values are disclosed

Carrying value Fair value
Levei 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Financial
Financial assets and liabilities as at . assets/ assets/ Total
31 March 2024 Amortised | . ities at fair liabilities at fair carrying
cost/ Cost .
value through | value through value
profit or loss ocl
Financial assets - non-current
Otlher financial assets 1,000.87 - - 1,000.87 - - - -
Financial assets - current
Investments
- Mulual funds - 5,180.02 5,180.02 5,180.02 - - 5,180.02
- Debenlure - 33.99 - 33.99 - 33.99 - 33.99
Trade receivables 14,362.19 - - 14,362.19 - - -
Cash and cash equivalents 851.41 - - 851.41 - - - -
Bank balances other than cash and cash 488.65 - - 488.65 - - - -
equivalents
Loans 17.19 - - 17.19 - - - -
Other financial assets 118.42 - - 118.42 - - -
Financial liabilities - non-current
Borrowings (including currenl malurities) 49,238.36 - - 49,238.36 - - - -
Lease liabilities 3,789.62 = = 3,789.62 - - -
Financial liabilities - current
Borrowings 2,068.85 - - 2,068.85 - - 3 -
Lease liabililies 2,053.41 - 2,053.41 - - - -
Trade payables 4,744 67 - - 4,744.67 - - -
Other financial liabilities 3,966,07 - - 3,966.07 - - - -
Carrying value Fair value
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Financial
Financial assets and liabilities as at . assets/ assets/ Total
31 March 2023 Amortised liabilities at fair|liabilities at fair| carrying
cost!/ Cost
value through | value through value
profit or loss ocl
Financial assets - non-current
Loans 5.36 - - 5.36 - = - -
Other financial assets 241197 - 2411.77 - - -
Financial assets - current
Trade receivables 8,532.60 - - 8,532.60 - = B
Cash and cash equivalenls 923.12 - 923.12 - = -
Bank balances olher lhan cash and cash 234.20 - - 234.20 - - - -
equivalents
Investments
- Mulual funds 114.22 114.22 114.22 - - -
- Debenlure - 179.13 179.13 - 179.13 - -
Loans 21.47 - - 21.47 - - a
Other financial assels 65.61 - - 65.61 - = = -
Financial liabilities - nen-current
Borrowings (Including currenl maturilies) 35,454.13 - - 3545413 - - -
Lease liabilities 3,269.83 - 3,269.83 - = a
Einancial liabilities - current
Borrowings - & = = - -
Lease liabilities 2,040.69 - - 2.040.69 - - =
Trade payables 4.783.82 - E 4,783.82 = - = =
Other financial liabilities 7.836.28 = :“"\1_836,28 < - -

During the periods mentioned above, there have been no lransfers amongsl the levg)éy
~4
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42 Financial risk management

The Group's aclivilies expose il lo inleresl rate risk, liquidity risk and credit risk. In order lo minimise any adverse effects on the financial performance,
the Group's risk managemenl is carried oul by a corporate treasury and corporate finance depariment under policies approved by the board of
directors and lop management. The Group's treasury identifies. evaluates and mitigates financial risks in close cooperation wilh the Group's operaling
units. The board provides guidance for averall the risk management, as well as policies covering specific areas.

This nole explains the sources of risk which the entity is exposed to and how the entity manages lhe risk and the relaled |mpacl in the financial
statements.

A Credit risk
Credil risk is the risk of financial loss arising from counterparty failure to repay or service debl according lo the conlractual lerms and obligations.
Credit risk encompasses of both, the direcl risk of defaull and the risk of deterioration of credilworthiness as well as concenlration of risks. Credil risk
is controlled by analysing credil limils and credit worthiness of the customer on conlinuous basis to whom lhe credil has been granled aller obtaining
necessary approvals for credil, The financial instruments that are subject lo concentration of credil risk principally consist of lrade receivables, loans
and cash and bank equivalents.

To manage credit risk, the Group follows a policy of providing 7 to 90 days credit to its customers, The credil limit policy is established considering the
currenl economic Irend of the induslry in which the Group is operating. Also, the trade receivables are monitored on a periodic basis for assessing any
significant risk of non-recoverabllily of dues and provision is created accordingly. Refer note 12 for ageing analysis and for informalion of credil loss
allowance.

Loans and other financial assets includes loans granted to employees, investments in mutual funds, deposits receivable, interest accrued on deposils
and other receivables. These receivables are monilored on a periodic basis for assessing any significant risk of non-recoverability of dues and
provision is crealed accordingly.

Credit risk on cash and cash equivalents is limited as the Group generally invest in depaosits with banks and financial institutions with high credit
ralings assigned by internalional and domeslic credil rating agencies.

The movement of the allowance for lifetime expected credit loss is as below:

Particulars Asat Aszat
31 March 2024 | 31 March 2023
Balance at the beginning of the year 916.11 432,62
Changes in loss allowances
Additions 180.72 507.80
Bad debls wrillen off (44.01) (24.31)
Balance at the end of the year 1,052.82 916,11

B Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group may nol be able lo meel ils present and future cash and collateral obligations wilhout incurring unacceptable
losses. The Group's objeclive is to maintain optimum levels of liquidily and to ensure thal funds are available for use as per requirement.

The liquidity risk principally arises from obligalions on account of financial liabililies viz. borrowings, lrade payables and other financial liabilities.
The finance department of the Group is responsible for liquidity and funding as well as selllemenl management. In addition, processes and policies
relaled lo such risks are overseen by senior management. Management monitors the Group's net liquidity position through rolling forecasts on the

basis of expected cash flows.

(i) Maturities of financial liabilities

As at 31 March 2024 Carrying Contractual maturities on undiscounted basis
amount
Particulars Amount Repayable o Upto 1 year Betwesn'd.and) Beyond 5 Total
demand 5 years - years
Barrowings (including current maturities) 51,307.21 2,068.85 7,390.40 27,914.05 14,126.34 51,499.64
Lease liabilities 5,843.03 - 2,439.50 3,801.98 < 6,241.48
Trade payables 4,744 .67 - 4,744.67 - - 4,744.67
Other financial liabilities 3,966.07 - 3,966.07 = S 3,966.07
Total 65,860.98 2,068.85 18,540.64 31,716.03 14,126.34 66,451.86
As at 31 March 2023 Carrying Contractual maturities on undiscounted basis
amount
Particulars Amount Repayanlé iy Upto 1 year LU, AT Total
demand 5 years years
Borrowings (including current maturities) 35,454.13 - 7,208.21 28,836.44 - 36,044.65
Lease liabilities 5,310.52 - 3,705.17 4,007.72 - 7.712.89
Trade payables 4,783.82 - 4,783.82 - - 4,783.82
Olher financial liabilities 7.836.28 " - 7.836.27 = % 7.836.27
Total 53,384.75 - 23,5633.47 32,844.16 - 56,377.63

C Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Markel risk
comprises three lypes of risk: Foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. The Group's exposure to markel risk is primarily on account of
foreign currency exchange rate risk, price risk and inlerest rale risk. Major financial inslruments affecled by markel risk include borrowings,
debentures and bonds.
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(i

(i) Price risk

- Exposure

The Group's exposure o equity securities price risk arises from investments held by the Group and classified in the balance sheet at "fair value
through profit and loss.”

- Sensitivity

The table below summarizes the impact of increases/ decreases of the BSE index on the Group's equity and gain/ loss for the period. The analysis

is based on the assumption that the index has increased by 5 % or decreased by 5 % with all other variables held constant, and that all the Group's
equity instruments moved in line with the index.

Impact of profit before tax

As at
31 March 2024

As at
31 March 2023

Particulars

BSE Sensex 30 - Increase 5% 259.00 571

BSE Sensex 30 - Decrease 5% (259.00) (5.71)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

- Interest rate risk management
Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest
rate risks. The Group's exposure lo risk of changes in market intereslt rates primarily to the Group's long-term debt obligations.

- Interest rate exposure
The exposure of the Group's borrowing to interest rate changes at the end of the reporting period are as follows:

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2024

Particulars

Variable rate borrowings 46,936.70 31,626.92
Fixed rate borrowings 4,370.52 3,827.20
Total 51,307.22 35,454.12

Interest rate sensitivity
The following table demonstrales the sensitivily to a reasonably possible change in interest rates on that portion of borrowings affected. With all
other variables held constant, the Group's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate borrowings, as follows:

Particulars

31 March 2024

31 March 2023

50 bps increase would decrease the profit before lax by*
50 bps decrease would increase the profit before tax by*

(234.68)
234.68

(158.13)
158.13

* Sensilivily is calculaled based on the assumption that amount outstanding as at reporting dates were ulilised during the year.

(ii) Foreign currency risk

43

The Group does not have any outstanding balances in foreign currency and consequently the Group's exposure to foreign exchange risk is Nil.
Although, the exchange rate between the rupee and foreign currencies has changed substantially in recent years, it has not affected the results of
the Group. The Group evaluales exchange rale exposure arising from foreign currency transactions entered during the year and follows
established risk management policies.

Capital management

(a) Risk management

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to :

1. Safeguard their ability to continue as a going concern, so thal they can conlinue to provide returns for shareholders and benefils for other
slakehalders, and

2. Maintain an oplimal capital structure to minimize the cost of capital.

In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, lhe Group may adjusl the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, return capital to
shareholders, issue new shares, reduce debt or sell assets.

The Group manages its capilal structure and makes adjustments in light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial
covenants. To maintain or adjus! the capital struclure, the Group may return capital to shareholders, issue new shares or adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders (if permitted). Consistent with ethers in the industry, the Group moenitors ils capital using the gearing ratic which is net
debl divided by lotal debt + capital (equity).

The gearing ratios were as follows:

Particulars As at Sk

31 March 2024 |31 March 2023
Net debt 56,298.83 39,841.53
Total equity 71.417.80 56,940.65
Capital Gearing Ratio 44.08% 41.17%

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group menitors its capilal using the net debl to equity ratio which is lolal debls divided by total equity and
intends to manage optimal ratios. In order to achieve this overall objeclive, the Group's capital management, amongst other things, aims to ensure
that it meets financial covenants attached to the borrowings that define the capital structure requirements.
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44 Interest in other entities

44 Investments in subsidiaries:

Proportion of ownership
interest
NS('; Name of the subsidiary Pran;tgsa‘lni:sa:e ol ahc‘lzg':;d"ot Principal activities
: Asat As at ng
31 March 31 March
2024 2023
Leasing of material
B i i — handling  equipments
aron Material Handling Equipments Private A d i |
1 % and providing  supply
Limited (TMHEPL) India 100% 100% Caost chelr. mervies B
solutions.
T Leasing of malerial
SKAN Marine Services Private Limited hagdung _deql.upmentls
2 |(SMSPL) (wef 21 February 2023) (Refer note India 100% 100% Cost g PIRVItING) SURR
44.2) chain  services &
solutions

44 The Board of Directors of the TMHEPL had approved arrangerent for amalgamation of erstwhile wholly owned subsidiary, SMSPL in its meeting held on 25 July 2023. The Scheme of amalgamalion has
been approved by the Regional Director, Ministry of Corporate Affairs vide order dated 28 May 2024. The cerlified copy of the Order has been fied with Registrar of Companies, Mumbai on 21 June 2024,
on which the Scheme became effective. Accordingly, the TMHEPL has accounted for the business combination transaction using the Pooling of interest method in accordance with the approved scheme as
per Appendix C of Ind AS 1083, Business Combinations of Enlilies under Common Conlrol. Pursuant lo above, the financial statemnents of the TMHEPL in respect of the prior periods have been restated from
the dale of ablaining control in the Transferor Company, being 21 February 2023 The merger had no impact on the consolidated financial statements of the Group

44 Disclosure mandated by Schedule lil by way of additional information

Year ended 31 March 2024

Net assets
(total assets - total liabilities)

Share in profit or loss

Share in total comprehensive

Share in ether comprehensive income z
income

Name:of Entity In the Graup As % of Consolidated net

As % of

As % of
Consolidated other

As % of
Consalidated total

Amount P— Amount  Consolidated Amount tomprehensive Amount cornprehensive
profitoloss income income
Parent Company
LEAP India Private Limited 71.877.52 101.00% 4,090.35 110.03% 6.79 175.00%  4.097.14 110.00%
Indian subsidiary company
Taron  Material Handling Equipments 0.00% -10.03% -75.00% (375.90) -10.00%
Privale Limited 290.18 (373.00) (2.90)
Less: Eliminatian {749.81) -1.00% - 0.00% 0.00% - 0.00%
Consolidated 71,417.89 3,717.35 3.89 3,721.24
Year ended 31 March 2023
Net assets Share in total comprehensive

Share in profit or loss

Share in other comprehensive income

(total assets - total liabilities) income
o As % of As % of
Name of Entity in the Group o . As % of " .
Kt As % of Consolidated net NiGuiE  Conaolidatad Amount Consolidated other Amount Consolidated total
assets profit or loss comprehensive comprehensive
income income
Parent Company
LEAP India Private Limitad 56,987.82 100.00% 936.54 103.92% 3.86 47 .00% 940 40 103,00%
Indian subsidiary company
Taron Material Handling Equipments 5202.92 9.00% (26.08) -2.88% 443 52.00% (21.63) -2.00%
Privale Limited (Refer note 44.2)
Less: Eliminalion (5,260 09) -9.00% (9.35) -1.04% - 0.00% (9.35) -1.00%
Consolidated 56,940.65 901.13 8.29 909.42
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45

46

47

48

Struck off Companies

i Nature of transactions Balance Relationship with
Name of struck off entity with struck-off Company oulstanding the struck off
Benchmark Supply Chain Receivables for sale of goods / a
Solutions Private Limiled services 20 Not related
3S Consultancy Private Limile: Payable for sale of goods / service 0.01 Mot relaied
Sri Sal Solutiens Payable for sale of goods / service 1.18 Nel relaled
V-Xpress Payable for sale of goods / service 0.00# Not related J
N - Mature of transactions Balance Relationship with
ame.af struck off antity with struck-off Company autstanding the struck off )
Knorr-Bremse Syslems For Receivables for sale of goods |
Commercial Vehicles India services 113 Mot related

Privale Limited

# amount less than ¥ 500

Segment reporting

Operaling segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker. The chief operaling decision maker reguiarly monilers and reviews lhe
operaling resulls of the whole Group as one segment of "Poaling of resources™. Thus, as defined in Ind AS 108 "Operating Segments”. the Group’s enfire business falls under this ane operational segment
and hence Ihe necessary information has already been disclosed in the Balance Sheel and the Stalement of Profil and Loss. Further, the enfire business of the Group is within India, hence there is no
geagraphical segmenl

Other Statutory Information

(1) The Group does not have any Benami properly. where any proceeding has been initialed or pending against the Group for holding any Benami praperty
(il) The Group does not have any charges or salisfaction which is ye! (o be registered wilh Registrar of Companies beyond fhe slatulory period.
(ill)The Group has not raded or invested in Crypto currency or Virlual Currency during the financial year.
(iv) The Group has not advanced or loaned o invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(ies), including fereign entities (Intermediaries) wilh Ihe understanding that the Intermediary shall:
a direclly or indireclly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Graup (Ultimate Bensficiaries); or
b. provide any guarantee, sscurity or the like to or en behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries
(v The Group has nol received any fund from any person(s) or entily(ies), including foreign entities (Funding Pariy) wilh the understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Group shall:
a directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities idenlified in any manner whalsoever by or on behall of the Funding Parly (Ullimate Beneficiaries). or
b provide any guarantee, security or the like on behall of the Ullimate Beneficiaries
(vi) The Group does not have any such transaction which is nol recorded in the books of accounts thal has been surrendered or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessmanls under the
Income Tax Act. 1961 (such as. search or survey or any other relevan! provisions of the Income Tax Acl. 1961,
(vii) None of the entities in the Group has nof been declared wilful defaulter by any bank er financial institution or government or any government authonty.
(viii} The Group has complied with he number of layers prescribed under the Companies Acl, 2013

Reconciliations of stock statement submitted to banks with books of accounts where borrowings have been availed based on security of current assels

Holding Company

f Amount
reported in the
t i
Quarter ended Name of bank Parliculars Arfistmt ds paEhodks quarierly Amesntaf Reason for material variances
of accounts difference
return/
statement
HDFC Bank The differences are on account
Axis Bank . of .
ICICI Bank UG BAssAl BrA7 L 1) The submissions lo (ke banks
HSBC Bank were made before financial
30:dyne;2023 HDFC Bank reporling closure process
Axis Bank - 2) Unbilled receivables not being
ICIC! Bank Inventory 1650.56 1.698.49 (47 93) | considered in lrade receivables,
HSBC Bank while reporting fo the bank
HDFC Bank
AE DRk Trade receivables 10,186.69 9,339 53 847 16
ICICI Bank
30 Seplember 2023 HEHE: Hank
HDFC Bank
Axis Bank
Invento 2,102.87 2,052 87 50.00
ICICI Bank &
HSBC Bank
HDFC Bank
ARIS BHK Trade receivabl 11,135.70 10,525,35 610.35
ICICI Bank
HSBC Bank
31 December 2023
1 e HDFG Bank
puate Bk Inventary 206168 2,025.51 56.37
ICICI Bank
HSBC Bank
HOFC Bank
Axls Bank Trade receivables 13,269 28 12,85.65 383.63
ICICI Bank
= HSBC Bank
31 March 2024
‘ HDFC Bank
Axis Bank Ivertary 1,245.31 1.365.42 (20.11)
ICICI Bank
HSBC Bank
31 March 2023 OEGIHERE Trade receivables 7.495.05 7.08570 400,35
Axis Bank
Subsidiary Company . B
Amount
reported in the
b f
Quarter ended Name of bank Particulars Antgunt as per huoks quarterly A.muu'“ 2 Reason for material variances
of accounts difference
return/
stalement
The differences are on accoun!
af -
Trade receivables 1.598.49 1.477.03 121.48 |1 Submissions to he bank were
made before financial reporling
31 March 2024 ICICI Bank cloure process
2. Unhilled receivables have not
- _|been  considered  in trade
ventary 135.32 140.89 15.57H receivables. while reportl
the bank
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49

50

51

. amortised over the period of 15 years The excess of purcha:

Business combinalions - acquisition of SKAN Marine Services Privale Limited (also refer note 44.2)

On 21 February 2023, Taron Matenal Handling Equipments Privale Limiled, a whally owned subsidiary of Ihe Holding Company, compleled the acquisition of 100% stake in 8KAN Marine Services Private
Linuted, a company based n Mumbai, a leading provider of services related lo leasing of malerial handling equipments and providing supply chain services and solutions. The acquisition will complement the
Groups synergy lo make itsell a reputed name in the logistic solulions and pooling assel leasing business.

The business combination was conducted by entering into a share purchase agreement for a lolal consideration of ¥ 9,731.48 lakhs (including transaction cost of 23148 lakhs),

Purchase price allocated o the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed includes value of customar relationships as intangible assels, which have been valued al % 1,137.00 lakhs, to be
ideration over net.assels and the identified intangible asset has been recognised as Goodwill

Al assets, liabililies and reserves in the books of Skan Marine Services Private Limited as an 21 February 2023 are recognised in the Group's books at their respective carrying values. The purchase price has
been allocaled hased on Ihe Group's appraisal of fair values as follows:

Particulars Amount

Total purchase consideration 9,500.00
Add: transaclion cosls 23148
Less: Tofal net assets acquired* (4,698.30)
Less . Intangibles identified on business combination : Customer F (1,137.00)
Add: Deferred tax on customer relalionship 286.18
Goodwill 4,182.36

(*Carrying value is equal to fair value expeact for value of immovable property)

During the year, the Holding Gompany has received an anonymous whislleblower complaint which, basis investigalion from an independent consullant, has been approprialely dealt with by the management
wilhoul having any impacl on the consolidated linancial statements.

The Ministry of Carporate Affairs (MCA) has prescribed a new requirement for companies under the proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounls) Rules, 2014 inserled by the Companies (Accounts)
Amendment Rules, 2021 requining companies. which uses accounting software for maintaining its books of account, shall use only such accounting software which has a fealure of recording audit trail of each
and every Iransaction, crealing an edit log of each change made in the books of account along with the date when such changes were made and ensuring thal the audit trail cannol be. disabled

The Helding Company and its subsidiary uses an accounting software for maintaining its books of account which has a feature of recarding audit trail (edit leg) facility and the same has operated throughout
Ihe year for all relevanl transactions recorded in the accounling software, except thal audil Irail fealure was ot enabled at the database level for accounling soflware.

The subsidiary has also used another accounting software for mainlaining its books of account from 1 April 2023 to 10 October 2023 which did not have a feature of recording audit trail (edil log) facilily. The
subsidiary migraled lo updated version of the said accounting software which has a feature of recording audit Irail (edil log) facility and the same was enabled from the date of migration ie., 11 Oclober 2023
Further, for lesting purpose the audil frail feature was disabled on 16 Oclober 2023 at 3:51 PM and subsequently re-enabled on Ihe same day al 3:56 PM.

This is a summary of malerial accounting pelicies and other explanalory information referred to in aur report of even dale <
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